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Compugen Ltd.
On August 5, 2019, Compugen Ltd. (the “Company”) issued a press release, a copy of which is furnished as Exhibit 99.1 to this Report on Form 6-K (this“Form 6-K”).
Second Quarter 2019 Financial Results
The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 and for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are
filed as Exhibit 99.2 to this Form 6-K and incorporated by reference herein. The Operating and Financial Review and Prospects of the Company as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2019
and June 30, 2018 arefiled as Exhibit 99.3 to this Form 6-K and incorporated by reference herein.

2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

On or about August 5, 2019, the Company first distributed copies of its proxy statement to its shareholders and will mail to its shareholders of record a proxy statement for an Annual General
Meeting of Shareholdersto be held September 19, 2019 in Israel.

A copy of the proxy statement and proxy card are attached to this Form 6-K as Exhibit 99.4.

Theinformation contained in this Form 6-K is hereby incorporated by reference into the Company’s Registration Statement on Form F-3, File No. 333-213007.

Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
99.1 Press Release dated August 5, 2019 — * Compugen Reports Second Quarter 2019 Results.”
99.2 Unaudited interim consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 and for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.
99.3 Operating and Financial Review and Prospects as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018.
9.4 Notice of 2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, Proxy Statement and Proxy Card.
101 Thefollowing financial information from Compugen Ltd.’s Report on Form 6-K, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) consolidated balance sheets

at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018; (ii) consolidated statements of comprehensive loss for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018; (iii) consolidated statements of
changes in shareholders' equity for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and the year ended December 31, 2018; (iv) consolidated statements of cash flows for the six months
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018; and (v) notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Exhibit 99.1

compugen
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Compugen Reports Second Quarter 2019 Results

HOLON, ISRAEL, August 5, 2019 — Compugen L td. (Nasdag: CGEN), aleader in predictive discovery and development of first-in-class therapeutics for cancer immunotherapy, today reported
financial results for the second quarter ended June 30, 2019.

“We continued the strong execution of our clinical program throughout the second quarter of 2019,” said Anat Cohen-Dayag, Ph.D., President and CEO of Compugen. “ Thisincludes the
important milestone of first patient dosed in the combination arm of our Phase 1 study of COM 701 and Opdivo®, which remains on-track to complete enrollment this year. Additionally, the
COM701 monotherapy dose escalation arm is progressing, and we look forward to rapidly advancing to the monotherapy expansion cohort later this year accompanied by our targeted, biomarker
driven approach. Finally, we are excited to advance our second internally devel oped asset, COM902, toward an IND filing later thisyear. These activities and the progress we are making
highlight our ability and commitment to translate our computational discoveriesinto meaningful and exciting clinical cancer immunotherapy programs.”

“After utilizing the ATM program together with the streamlined corporate structure implemented in March, we now have sufficient cash resources expected to fund operations through mid-2021.
We will remain diligent in effectively using our capital to continue to execute on our pipeline programs and ensure our future growth,” added Dr. Cohen-Dayag.

Recent Corporate Highlights

*  Dosed first patient in the combination arm of the Phase 1 study for COM 701, combining escalating doses of COM 701 with a fixed dose of Opdivo (nivolumab) in patients with advanced
solid tumors. Combination arms of the study are conducted under the clinical collaboration agreement entered into with Bristol-Myers Squibb in October 2018.

*  Reported at atrial-in-progress poster presentation at the 2019 ASCO Annual Meeting in June that the sixth dose level patient cohort of COM 701 monotherapy has been completed and
that no dose-limiting toxicities were found. Clinical and laboratory assessment for safety and tolerability are ongoing for this and earlier dose level patient cohorts.

¢ Awarded U.S. Patent No. 10,351,625 by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, which covers the method of use of COM701 in combination with any anti-PD-1 antibody.




Financial Results

R&D expenses for the second quarter ended June 30, 2019 were $4.9 million, compared with $8.0 million for the comparable period in 2018. The decrease in R& D expenses was primarily due to the
decreasein preclinical activities related to COM902, most of which were done in 2018, and the cost reduction measures announced by the Company in the first quarter of 2019. This decrease was
partially offset by an increase in R& D expenses associated with clinical-related activities for the COM 701 Phase 1 trial, which began in the second half of 2018.

Taxes on Income for the second quarter of 2019 reflect atax benefit of $0.7 million due to arefund of withholding taxes from previous years.

Net loss for the second quarter of 2019 was $6.0 million, or $0.10 per basic and diluted share, compared with a net loss of $10.2 million, or $0.19 per basic and diluted share, in the comparable
period of 2018.

As of June 30, 2019, cash, cash related accounts, short-term and long-term bank deposits totaled $37.0 million, compared with $45.7 million at December 31, 2018. The Company has no debt.
During the three months ended June 30, 2019, the Company sold approximately 1.0 million ordinary shares under its "at-the-market" (ATM) facility pursuant to a sales agreement entered into
with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. in May 2018 for aggregate proceeds of approximately $3.8 million, net of commissions to Cantor and expenses related to the offering. Since June 30, 2019, the
Company sold approximately 5.2 million ordinary shares under the ATM for aggregate proceeds of approximately $15.5 million, net of commissionsto Cantor and expenses related to the offering.
The Company now believesthat it has sufficient cash resources to fund its operations through mid-2021 and therefore decided to cancel itsremaining ATM program.

Conference Call and Webcast Information

Compugen will hold aconference call to discuss its second quarter 2019 results today, August 5, 2019, at 8:30 AM ET. To access the live conference call by telephone, please dial 1-888-407-2553
from the U.S., or +972-3-918-0644 internationally. The conference call will also be available vialive webcast through Compugen’ s website, located at the following link. Following the live audio
webcast, areplay will be available on the Company’s website.

(Tablesto follow)




About Compugen

Compugen isaclinical-stage, therapeutic discovery and development company utilizing its broadly applicable computational discovery platformsto identify novel drug targets and develop first-
in-class therapeuticsin the field of cancer immunotherapy. The Company’s therapeutic pipeline consists of immuno-oncology programs against novel drug targetsit has discovered
computationally, including T cell immune checkpoints and other early-stage immuno-oncology programs focused largely on myeloid targets. Compugen’s business model is to enter into
collaborations for its novel targets and related drug product candidates at various stages of research and development. The Company is headquartered in I srael with facilitiesin South San
Francisco, CA. Compugen’s ordinary shares are listed on Nasdag and the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol CGEN. For additional information, please visit Compugen's corporate
website at www.cgen.com.

Forward-L ooking Statement

This press rel ease contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of
terminology such as “will,” “may,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “potential,” “plan,” “goal,” “estimate,” “likely,” “should,” “confident,” and “intends,” and describe opinions about
possible future events. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Compugen to
be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the timing and success of
our clinical trias, the potential benefits and consequences from our corporate restructuring and anticipated cash expenditures and savings, and our cash runway. Among these risks:
Compugen's business model is substantially dependent on entering into collaboration agreements with third parties and Compugen may not be successful in generating adequate revenues or
commercializing aspects of its business model. Moreover, the development and commercialization of drug target candidates and their related therapeutic product candidates involve many
inherent risks, including failure to progressto clinical trials or, if they progressto or enter clinical trials, failure to receive regulatory approval. These and other factors, including the ability to
finance the Company, are more fully discussed in the “Risk Factors” section of Compugen’s most recent Annual Report on Form 20-F as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
aswell as other documents that may be subsequently filed by Compugen from time to time with the SEC. In addition, any forward-looking statements represent Compugen’s views only as of the
date of this release and should not be relied upon as representing its views as of any subsequent date. Compugen does not assume any obligation to update any forward-looking statements
unless required by law.

Company contact:

ElanaHolzman

Director, Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Compugen Ltd.

Email: elanah@cgen.com

Tel: +972 (3) 765-812

Investor Relations contact:
Bob Yedid

LifeSci Advisors, LLC

Email: bob@lifesciadvisors.com
Tel: +1 (646) 597-6989




COMPUGEN LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(U.S. dollarsin thousands, except for share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Revenues - - 10,000
Cost of revenues - 350
Gross profit - - 9,650
Operating expenses

Research and development expenses 4,870 8,027 11,205 15,095
Marketing and business devel opment expenses 175 319 388 697
Genera and administrative expenses 1,962 1,988 3,928 4,077
Total operating expenses 7,007 10,334 15,521 19,869
Operating loss (7,007) (10,334) (15,521) (10,219)
Financial and other income, net 308 141 414 130
L oss befor e taxes on income (6,699) (10,193) (15,107) (10,089)
Taxes on income 722 - 722 -
Net loss (5,977) (10,193) (14,385) (10,089)
Basic and diluted net loss per ordinary share (0.10) (0.19) (0.24) (0.19)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share 61,479,162 52,512,259 60,747,948 52,149,380




COMPUGENLTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETSDATA
(U.S. dollars, in thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Unaudited
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash, cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and restricted cash 36,975 45,675
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 802 903
Total current assets 37,777 46,578
Non-current assets
Long-term prepaid expenses 765 776
Severance pay fund 2,465 2,454
Operating lease right to use Asset 4,490 -
Property and equipment, net 2,768 3,372
Total non-current assets 10,488 6,602
Total assets 48,265 53,180
LIABILITIESAND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities
Other account payables, accrued expenses and trade payables 4,939 8,900
Current maturity of operating lease liability 1,184 -
Short-term deferred participation in R&D expenses 898 1,089
Total current liabilities 7,021 9,989
Non-current liabilities
Long-term deferred participation in R& D expenses 2,929 3,003
Long-term operating lease liability 3,549 -
Accrued severance pay 2,971 2,945
Total non-current liabilities 9,449 5,948
Total shareholders equity 31,795 37,243
Total liabilitiesand shareholders equity 48,265 53,180




Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensiveloss

Statements of Changesin Shareholders Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollarsin thousands

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Unaudited
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55% $ 5,861
Restricted cash 633 605
Short-term bank deposits 30,746 39,209
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 802 903
Total current assets 37,777 46,578
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Long-term prepaid expenses 765 776
Severance pay fund 2,465 2,454
Operating lease right to use Asset 4,490 -
Property and equipment, net 2,768 3,372
Total non-current assets 10,488 6,602
Total assets $ 48265 % 53,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Unaudited

LIABILITIESAND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Trade payables $ 1150 $ 2,946

Current maturity of operating lease liability 1,184 -

Short-term deferred participation in R& D expenses 898 1,089

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,789 5,954
Total current liabilities 7,021 9,989
NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term deferred participation in R& D expenses 2,929 3,003

Long term operating lease liability 3,549 -

Accrued severance pay 2,971 2,945
Total non-current liabilities 9,449 5,948
COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (NOTE 5)
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY:

Share capital:

Ordinary shares of NIS 0.01 par vaue: 100,000,000 shares authorized at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018; 61,955,992 and 59,849,784 shares
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively 170 164

Additional paid-in capital 376,851 367,920

Accumulated deficit (345,226) (330,841)
Total shareholders' equity 31,795 37,243
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 48265 $ 53,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)

Revenues
Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Research and devel opment expenses, net
Marketing and business devel opment expenses
Genera and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Financial and other income, net

L oss before taxes on income
Taxesonincome

Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per share

Other comprehensive loss:

Unrealized gain arising during the period from foreign currency derivative contracts
Realized gain arising during the period from foreign currency derivative contracts
Total comprehensive loss

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Six months ended
June 30,
2019 2018
Unaudited
$ - 0% 10,000
- 350
- 9,650
11,205 15,095
388 697
3,928 4,077
15,521 19,869
(15,521) (10,219)
414 130
(15,107) (10,089)
722 -
$ (14,385) $ (10,089)
$ (024) $ (0.19)
$ - $
$ - $ (17)
$ (14385 $ (10,106)
60,747,948 52,149,380




COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY
STATEMENTS OF CHANGESIN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

U.S. dallarsin thousands (except share data)

Accumulated
other Total
Ordinary shares Additional paid-in comprehensive Accumulated shareholders
Number Amount capital Income deficit equity
Balance as of January 1, 2018 51,293070 $ 140 $ 337382 $ 17 3 (308242) $ 29,297
Options exercised 765,420 2 683 - - 685
Issuance of ordinary shares and warrants, net of
issuance cost 7,791,294 22 27,689 - - 27,711
Stock-based compensation relating to options issued
to non-employees - - 193 - - 193
Stock-based compensation relating to options issued
to employees and directors - - 1,973 - - 1,973
Changes in other comprehensive income (loss) from
foreign currency derivative contracts - - - 17) - (17)
Net loss - - - - (22,599) (22,599)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 59,849,784 164 367,920 - (330,841) 37,243
Options exercised 123,412 *) 396 - - 396
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of issuance cost 1,982,796 6 7,247 - - 7,253
Stock-based compensation relating to options issued
to non-employees - - 150 - - 150
Stock-based compensation relating to options issued
to employees and directors - - 1,138 - - 1,138
Net loss - - - (14,385) (14,385)
Balance as of June 30, 2019 (unaudited) 61,955992 % 170 $ 376851 $ - 3 (345226) $ 31,795
*) Represents an amount lower than $ 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTSOF CASH FLOWS

COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

U.S. dollarsin thousands

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Stock-based compensation

Depreciation

Increase (decrease) in severance pay, net

Loss (gain) from property and equipment disposal

Exchange rate differences on short-term and long-term operating lease liability
Decrease (increase) in interest receivables from short-term bank deposits
Decrease (increase) in other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses

Decrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in trade payables and other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in deferred participation in R& D expenses

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturity of short-term bank deposits
Investment in short-term bank deposits
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares and warrants, net
Proceeds from exercise of options

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at the beginning of the period

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at the end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Changesin receivables from foreign currency derivative contracts
Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares and warrants, net
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liability
Cash payments for operating leases

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Six months ended
June 30,
2019 2018
Unaudited
$ (14,385 $ (10,089)
1,288 1,052
561 721
15 (14)
(148) 52
168 -
60 27)
231 (558)
11 (26)
(3,950) 1,040
(265) -
(16,414) (7,849)
29,603 10,900
(21,200) (39,106)
(29 (128)
284 2
8,658 (28,332)
7,123 20,055
396 545
7,519 20,600
(237) (15,581)
6,466 26,520
$ 6229 $ 10,939
$ - 8 (17)
$ 64 $ -
$ 130 % 296
$ 5049 $ -
$ 84 %




COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 1:- GENERAL

a

Compugen ("The Company") is a clinical-stage, therapeutic discovery and development company utilizing its proprietary computational discovery platforms to identify
novel drug targets and devel op first-in-class therapeutics in the field of cancer immunotherapy. The Company's therapeutic pipeline consists of immuno-oncology programs
against novel drug targets it has discovered, including T cell immune checkpoints and other early-stage immuno-oncology programs focused largely on myeloid targets. The
Company’s business model isto enter into collaborations for its novel targets and related drug product candidates at various stages of research and development.

The Company is headquartered in Holon, Israel. Its clinical development and business development activities operate from its United States subsidiary in South San
Francisco, CA.

The Company has incurred losses in the amount of $ 14,385 during the six months ended June 30, 2019, has an accumulated deficit of $ 345,226 as of June 30, 2019 and has
accumulated negative cash flow from operating activities amounted to $ 16,414 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. On February 26, 2019, the Company announced a
corporate restructuring to reduce costs by consolidating and streamlining R& D operations. The restructuring includes reducing its workforce by 35%, consolidating R&D
activities in one location in Israel and outsourcing certain preclinical activities to third-party service providers. The Company believes that its existing capital resources
together with the anticipated cost reductions will be adequate to satisfy its expected liquidity requirements beyond the third quarter of 2020.

On August 5, 2013, the Company entered into a Research and Development Collaboration and License Agreement ("Bayer Agreement”) with Bayer Pharma AG ("Bayer") for
the research, development, and commercialization of antibody-based therapeutics for antibody-based therapeutics against two novel Compugen-discovered immune
checkpoint regulators.

Under the terms of the Bayer Agreement, the Company received an upfront payment of $ 10,000, and, following the return of the CGEN 15022 program in 2017, is eligible to
receive an aggregate of over $ 250,000 in potential milestone payments, not including aggregate milestone payments of approximately $ 23,000 received to date. Additionally,
the Company is eligible to receive mid to high single digit royalties on global net sales of any approved products under the collaboration.

Pursuant to the terms of Bayer Agreement, BAY 1905254 program (formerly CGEN-15001T) was transferred to Bayer’'s full control for further preclinical and clinical
development activities, and worl dwide commercialization under milestone and royalty bearing licenses from Compugen.

F-7




COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 1:-

NOTE 2:-

GENERAL (Cont.)

€.

Effective March 30, 2018, the Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with Medimmune Limited, the global biologics research and development arm of
AstraZeneca (“AstraZeneca’) to enable the development of bi-specific and multi-specific immuno-oncology antibody products. Under the terms of the agreement,
Compugen provided an exclusive license to AstraZeneca for the development of bi-specific and multi-specific antibody products derived from a Compugen pipeline
program. AstraZeneca has the right to create multiple products under this license and will be solely responsible for all research, development and commercial activities under
the agreement. Compugen received a $10,000 upfront payment and is eligible to receive up to $200,000 in development, regulatory and commercial milestones for the first
product as well as tiered royalties on future product sales. If additional products are developed, additional milestones and royalties would be due to Compugen for each
product.

On October 10, 2018, the Company entered into a Master Clinical Tria Collaboration Agreement (the “Master Clinical Agreement”) with Bristol-Myers Squibb Company
(“Bristol-Myers Squibb”) to evaluate the safety and tolerability of Compugen’s COM701 in combination with Bristol-Myers Squibbs’ programmed death-1 (PD-1) immune
checkpoint inhibitor Opdivo® (nivolumab), in patients with advanced solid tumors. Pursuant to the Master Clinical Agreement, Compugen is responsible for and will
continue sponsoring the ongoing two-part Phase 1 trial, which includes the evaluation of the combination of COM701 and Opdivo®. The collaboration is also designed to
address potential future combinations, including trials sponsored by Bristol-Myers Squibb to investigate combined inhibition of checkpoint mechanisms, such as PVRIG
and TIGIT. Bristol-Myers Squibb and Compugen will each supply the other company with its own compound for the other party’s study, and otherwise each party will be
responsiblefor all costs associated with the study that it is conducting.

In conjunction with the signing of the Master Clinical Agreement, Bristol-Myers Squibb made a$ 12,000 investment in Compugen, see Note 6a.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a

These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for
the year ended December 31, 2018. The significant accounting policies applied in the annual financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2018, are applied
consistently in these interim consolidated financial statements, except for the Company's adoption of the accounting standard update 2016-02, "Lease" ("ASU 2016-02")
using the modified retrospective approach.

Concentration of credit risks:

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company and Compugen USA, Inc. to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, short-term bank deposits and foreign currency derivative contracts.

Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and short-term bank deposits are invested in major banksin Israel and in the United States ("U.S."). Generally, these deposits may be
redeemed upon demand and bear minimal risk.




COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2:-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

C.

Revenue recognition:

The Company generates revenues mainly from its Research and Development Collaboration and License Agreements. The revenues are derived mainly from upfront license
payments, research and devel opment services and contingent payments related to milestones achievements.

The Company has adopted the new revenue standard, Topic 606 — “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, as of January 1, 2018, using a modified retrospective adoption
transition to each prior reporting period presented. The adoption did not have an effect over the Consolidated Financial Statements on the adoption date and no adjustment
to prior year consolidated financial statements was required.

The Company analyzes its collaboration arrangements to assess whether they are within the scope of ASC 606. In determining the appropriate amount of revenue to be
recognized as the Company fulfillsits obligations under each of its agreements, the Company performs the following steps:

. Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer
. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract- At contract inception, the Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a

customer and identifies those distinct goods and services that represent a performance obligation. A promised good or service may not be identified as a
performance obligation if it isimmaterial in the context of the contract with the customer, if it is not separately identifiable from other promises in the contract
(either because it is not capable of being separated or because it is not separable in the context of the contract), or if the performance obligation does not
provide the customer with amaterial right.

. Determination of the transaction price- The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction
price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services
to acustomer. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both. Variable consideration will only
be included in the transaction price when it is not considered constrained, which is when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur.

. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract- If it is determined that multiple performance obligations exist, the transaction
price is allocated at the inception of the agreement to all identified performance obligations based on the relative standalone selling prices. The relative selling
price for each deliverableis estimated using objective evidence if it is available. If objective evidence is not available, the Company uses its best estimate of the
selling price for the deliverable.
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COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)
NOTE 2:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
. Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation- Revenue is recognized when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance

obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a customer. An asset is transferred when, or as, the customer obtains control of that asset, which for a
serviceis considered to be as the services are received and used.

After contract inception, the transaction price is reassessed at every period end and updated for changes such as resolution of uncertain events. Any change
in the transaction priceis allocated to the performance obligations on the same basis as at contract inception.

The Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with AstraZeneca. Under the terms of the agreement, Compugen provided AstraZeneca with an exclusive license
to intellectual property ("IP) rights of the Company for the development of bi-specific and multi-specific antibody products derived from a Compugen pipeline program.
Compugen received a $10,000 upfront nonrefundable payment and is eligible to receive up to $200,000 in development, regulatory and commercial milestones for the first
product aswell astiered royalties on future product sales.

Under ASC 606, the Company determined the license to the | P to be afunctional IP that has significant standalone functionality. The Company is not required to continue to
support, develop or maintain the intellectual property transferred and will not undertake any activities to change the standal one functionality of the IP. Therefore the license
to the IPisadistinct performance obligation and as such revenue is recognized at the point in time that control of the licenseis transferred to the customer.

Future milestone payments are considered variable consideration and are subject to the variable consideration constraint (i.e. will be recognized once concluded that it is
“probable” that a significant reversal of the cumulative revenues recognized under the contract will not occur in future periods when the uncertainty related to the variable
consideration is resolved). Therefore, as the milestone payments are not probabl e, revenue was not recognized in respect to such milestone payments.

Sales- or usage-based royalties to be received in exchange for licenses of IP are recognized at the later of when (1) the subsequent sale or usage occurs or (2) the
performance obligation to which some or al of the sales- or usage-based royalty has been allocated is satisfied (in whole or in part). Asroyalties are payable based on future
Commercial Sales, as defined in the agreement, which did not occur as of the financial statements date, the Company did not recognize any revenues from royalties.

d. Recently adopted accounting pronouncements:
1 Leases
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02 (Topic 842) "Leases." Topic 842 supersedes

the lease requirementsin Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 840, "Leases." Under Topic 842, lessees are required to recognize assets and liabilities on
the balance sheet for most Ieases and provide enhanced disclosures.
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 2:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

The Company adopted ASC 842 on January 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective approach and consequently did not restate comparative periods. In addition,
the Company elected the available practical expedients on adoption which does not require it to reassess the prior conclusions about lease identification, lease
classification and initial direct costs.

The Company leases real estate, cars and storage areas, which are al classified as operating leases. In addition to rent payments, the leases may require the
Company to pay for insurance, maintenance and other operating expenses.

The Company determines if an arrangement is alease at inception. Lease classification is governed by five criteriain ASC 842-10-25-2. If any of these five criteriais
met, the Company classifies the lease as a finance lease. Otherwise, The Company classifies the lease as an operating lease. As of June 30, 2019, all arrangements
were classified as operating | eases.

Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (“ROU") assets and operating lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. ROU assets represent
the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Operating and finance lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease
term. The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the commencement date to determine the present value of the lease
payments. Our incremental borrowing rate is estimated to approximate the interest rate on a collateralized basis with similar terms and payments, and in economic
environments where the leased asset is located. Operating |ease expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Some of the |ease agreements
include rental payments adjusted periodically for inflation. The Company's financial income (expenses), net will be impacted by the revaluation of the lease liabilities
in non-USD denominated currencies. The Company’s |ease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees.

The Company elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases with a term shorter than 12 months. This means that for those leases, the Company
does not recognize ROU assets or |ease liabilities, including not recognizing ROU assets or lease liabilities for existing short-term leases of those assetsin transition,

but recogni zes | ease expenses over the |ease term on a straight-line basis.

Some of thereal estate |eases contain variable lease payments, including payments subject to annual changes in the Consumer Price Index (CPI). The changesto the
CPI aretreated as variable |ease payments and recognized in the period in which the obligation for those payments was incurred.

The Company recorded upon adoption as of January 1, 2019, right-of-use leased assets and corresponding liabilities of $ 5,049.

See note 4 for additional disclosures.
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NOTE 2:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
2. The Company also adopted ASU 2018-07, “Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting.”
This ASU supersedes ASC 505-50, “Equity—Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees,” and expands the scope of ASC 718, “Compensation — Stock
Compensation,” to include all share-based payment arrangements related to the acquisition of goods and services from both nonemployees and employees. The
adoption of this guidance has no material impact on the Company’sfinancial statements.

e Basic and diluted loss per share:

Basic loss per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during each period. Diluted net loss per share is calculated based
on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during each period, plus dilutive potential in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings per Share."

All outstanding share options and warrants for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 have been excluded from the calculation of the diluted net loss per share
because all such securities are anti-dilutive for all periods presented. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 the total weighted average number of shares related to outstanding
options and warrants excluded from the cal culations of diluted net |oss per share were 12,822,249 and 8,750,886, respectively.
NOTE3:-  UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for
interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include al the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for
complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been
included.
Operating results for the six-month period ended June 30, 2019 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ended December 31, 2019.
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NOTE 4:-

LEASES

The Company and Compugen USA, Inc. lease their respective facilities and motor vehicles under various operating |lease agreements that expire on various dates.

The Company subleases small part of its leased premises. Sublease income in the six months ended June 30, 2019, amounted to $ 10.

The Company’s operating |ease agreements have remaining lease terms ranging from 1 month to 7 years, including agreements with options to extend the |eases for up to 5 years.

The following table represents the weighted-average remaining | ease term and discount rate:

Six months
ended
June 30, 2019

Weighted average remaining lease term 5.3 years
Weighted average discount rate 9.4%

Lease terms will include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise or not exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. Maturities of operating lease liabilities were asfollows:

June 30, 2019

2019 (excluding the six months ended June 30, 2019) $ 788
2020 1,528
2021 936
2022 642
2023 638
2024 and after 1,410
Total operating lease payments $ 5,942
Less: imputed interest 1,209
Present value of lease liabilities $ 4,733

Operating lease expenses for the Company and Compugen USA, Inc. were approximately $ 764 and $ 757 for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The above annual minimum future rental commitments include afirst option to extend the lease of the Company facility for additional five-year period and exclude a second option
to extend the | ease of the Company facility for additional five-year period following expiration of the current lease period.

F-13




COMPUGEN LTD. AND ITSSUBSIDIARY

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollarsin thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 5:-

COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

a

b.

The Company provided bank guarantees in the amount of $ 653 in favor of its offices' lessor in Israel and credit card security for itsU.S. subsidiary.

Under the office of the Israel Innovation Authority of the Israeli Ministry of Industry, Trade and Labor, formerly known as the Office of the Chief Scientist, ("IIA"), the
Company is not obligated to repay any amounts received from the I1A if it does not generate any income from the results of the funded research program(s).

If income is generated from a funded research program, the Company is committed to pay royalties at a rate of between 3% to 5% of future revenue arising from such
research program(s), up to amaximum of 100% of the amount received, linked to the U.S. dollar (for grants received under programs approved subsequent to January 1, 1999,
the maximum amount to be repaid is 100% plus interest at LIBOR).

For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company had aggregate paid and accrued royaltiesto the 1A, recorded as cost of revenuesin the consolidated
statement of comprehensive loss, in the amounts of $ 0 and $ 350, respectively.

As of June 30, 2019, the Company's aggregate contingent obligations for payments to 1A, based on royalty-bearing participation received or accrued, net of royalties paid
or accrued, totaled $ 9,228.

On June 25, 2012, the Company entered into an Antibodies Discovery Collaboration Agreement (the "Antibodies Discovery Agreement") with a U.S. antibody technology
company ("mAb Technology Company"), providing an established source for fully human mAbs. Under the Antibodies Discovery Agreement, the mAb Technology
Company will be entitled to certain royalties that could be eliminated upon payment of certain one-time fees (all milestone and royalties payments referred together as
"Contingent Fees"). As of June 30, 2019, the Company incurred aggregate Contingent Fees in the amounts of $ 500.

On May 9, 2012, the Company entered into agreement (the "May 2012 Agreement”) with a U.S. Business Development Strategic Advisor ("Advisor") for the purpose of
entering into transactions with Pharma companies related to selected Pipeline Program Candidates. Under the agreement the Advisor shall be entitled to 4% of the cash
considerations that may be received under such transactions. In 2014, the May 2012 Agreement was terminated except for certain payments arising from the Bayer
Agreement which survive termination until August 5, 2025.

For the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company had no paid and accrued expenses related to this agreement.

Effective as of January 5, 2018, the Company entered into aCommercial License Agreement (CLA) with a European cell line development company. Under the agreement the
Company is required to pay an annual maintenance fee, certain amounts upon the occurrence of specified milestones events, and 1% royalties on annual net sales with
respect to each commercialized product manufactured using the company’s cell line. Royalties due under the CLA are creditable against the annual maintenance fee. In
addition, the Company may at any time prior to the occurrence of a specific milestone event buy-out the royalty payment obligationsin asingle fixed amount.
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NOTE 6:-

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

a

Issuance of Shares:

On May 25, 2018, the Company entered into a sales agreement with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (“Cantor”), as sales agent, pursuant to which the Company may offer and sell,
from time to time through Cantor, ordinary shares, par value NIS 0.01 per share, of the Company (the “Ordinary Shares”), under an At-the-Market ("ATM") program, having
an aggregate offering price of up to $25,000 (the “ATM Shares’). Any ATM Shares offered and sold will be issued pursuant to the Company’s shelf registration statement
on Form F-3 (Registration No. 333-213007) and the related prospectus previously declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC”) on October 11,
2016 (the “ Registration Statement”), as supplemented by a prospectus supplement, dated May 25, 2018. As of June 30, 2019, 2,033,390 shares were issued and sold under
the ATM, with proceeds of approximately $ 7,409 (net of $ 301 issuance expenses).

On June 14, 2018, the Company entered into agreements in connection with a registered direct offering (the “ Offering”) of an aggregate of 5,316,457 Ordinary Shares (the
“RD Shares’) of the Company together with accompanying warrants to purchase an aggregate of up to 4,253,165 Ordinary Shares (the “Warrants”) at a combined offering
price of $3.95 per RD Share and accompanying Warrant. The Warrants are exercisable at a price of $4.74 per Ordinary Share and expire five years from the date of issuance.
The Offering was made pursuant to the Company’s Registration Statement. The RD Shares were issued and the Warrants were granted on June 19, 2018 following the
closing of the Offering. Proceeds from the Offering were $ 19,767 (net of $ 1,233 issuance expenses).

On October 10, 2018, the Company entered into a Master Clinica Trial Collaboration Agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb to evaluate the safety and tolerability of the
Company’s COM701 in combination with Bristol-Myers Squibb’s programmed death-1 (PD-1) immune checkpoint inhibitor Opdivo® (nivolumab), in patients with advanced
solid tumors. In conjunction with the Master Clinical Agreement, Bristol-Myers Squibb made a $ 12,000 equity investment in the Company. Under the terms of the securities
purchase agreement, Bristol-Myers Squibb purchased 2,424,243 ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price of $ 4.95 per share. The share price represents a 33%
premium over the average closing price of Compugen’s ordinary shares for twenty (20) Nasdaq trading days prior to the execution of the securities purchase agreement. The
investment closed on October 12, 2018.

The premium over the fair market value in the amount of $ 4,121 represents the relative fair value of deferred participation of Bristol-Myers Squibb in R& D expenses which
will be amortized over the period of the clinical trial based on the progress in the R&D, in accordance with ASC 808 “ Collaborative Arrangements” and $ 7,788 (net of $ 91

issuance expenses) were considered equity investment.
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NOTE 6:- SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (Cont.)
b. Stock based compensation:

During the six-month period ended June 30, 2019, the Company's Board of Directors granted 440,500 options to purchase ordinary shares of the Company to employees,
directors and non-employees. The exercise prices for such options range from $ 2.52 to $ 3.80 per share, with vesting to occur in up to 4 years.

The following table presents the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the options granted in the periods presented:

Six months ended

June 30,
2019 2018
Unaudited
Volatility 54%-55% 53%-55%
Risk-freeinterest rate 2.2%-2.5% 2.6%-2.8%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected life (years) 4951 495

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $ 1.82 and $ 1.75, respectively.
During the six-month periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded share based compensation in atotal amount of $ 1,288 and $ 1,052, respectively.

As of June 30, 2019, the total unrecognized estimated compensation cost related to non-vested stock options granted prior to that date was $ 4,198 which is expected to be
recognized over aweighted average period of approximately 2.52 years.

NOTE7:- TAXESONINCOME

In May 2019 the Company received arefund of withholding taxes on the Bayer milestones from the German tax authorities in the amount of EUR 645. The refund is presented as
income tax benefit in the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss.
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NOTE 8- FINANCIAL AND OTHER INCOME, NET
Six months ended

June 30,
2019 2018
Unaudited
Interest income $ 468 $ 164
Exchange rate differences and other (54) (34)
Financial and other income, net $ 414 % 130
NOTE9:- RELATED PARTY BALANCESAND TRANSACTIONS
Balances with related parties:
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Unaudited
Trade payables () $ 66 $ 133
Related parties' expenses:
Six months ended
June 30,
2019 2018
Unaudited
Amounts charged to:
$ 9 $ 167

Research and development expenses (a)

@ For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company incurred expenses for research and development services provided by related parties for cancer
studiesin animal models, and breeding and maintenance of animals (mice) to support such studies.

NOTE 10:- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Since June 30, 2019, the Company sold 5,211,878 ordinary shares under its ATM program for aggregate proceeds of approximately $15,500, net of i ssuance expenses.




Exhibit 99.3

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
RESULTSOF OPERATIONS
Six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenues. During the six month period ended June 30, 2019, the Company had no revenues compared with $10.0 million in revenues in the comparable period of 2018. Revenues during the
comparable period were attributable to a non-refundabl e upfront payment received by the Company pursuant to alicense agreement with Medlmmune, Limited, the global biologics research and
development arm of AstraZeneca, or AstraZeneca, entered into as of March 30, 2018 (the “ AstraZeneca Collaboration”).

Cost of Revenues. During the six month period ended June 30, 2019, the Company had no cost of revenues compared with $0.4 million in cost of revenuesin the comparable period of 2018. Cost
of revenuesin the comparable period consisted of royalties to the Israel Innovation Authority, formerly known as the Office of the Chief Scientist, in connection with revenues recognized during
that period.

Research and Devel opment Expenses. Research and devel opment expenses decreased by approximately 26% to approximately $11.2 million for the first six months of 2019 from approximately
$15.1 million for the comparable period of 2018. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in preclinical activities related to COM 902, most of which were donein 2018, and the cost
reduction measures announced by the Company in the first quarter of 2019, offset by an increase in expenses associated with clinical-related activities for the COM 701 Phase 1 trial, which began
in the second half of 2018. The full effect of the cost reduction measures announced by the Company in the first quarter of 2019 will be reflected over the course of 2019. Research and
development expenses, as a percentage of total operating expenses, were 72% for the first six months of 2019 compared to 76% for the comparable period of 2018.

Marketing and Business Devel opment Expenses. Marketing and business devel opment expenses decreased by approximately 44% to approximately $0.4 million for the six month period ended
June 30, 2019 from approximately $0.7 million for the comparable period of 2018. The decrease is attributable to headcount related expenses. Marketing and business devel opment expenses, as a
percentage of total operating expenses, were 2% for the first six months of 2019 compared with 4% for the comparable period of 2018.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately 4% to approximately $3.9 million for the first six months of 2019 from approximately $4.1
million for the comparable period of 2018. The decrease is attributable to expenses associated with financing activitiesin the comparable period of 2018 aswell aslegal expenses related to
collaboration agreements during that period and other corporate mattersin that period. General and administrative expenses, as a percentage of total operating expenses, increased to 25% for the
first six months of 2019 from 21% for the comparable period of 2018.

Financial and other Income, Net. Financial and other income, net, were approximately $0.4 million for the first six months of 2019 compared with approximately $0.1 million for the comparable
period of 2018.

Taxes on Income. Tax benefit was $0.7 million for the first six months of 2019 compared with $0 in the comparable period of 2018 due to arefund of withholding taxes from previous years.




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities. Net cash used in operating activities was approximately $16.4 million in the first six months of 2019 compared with approximately $7.8 million in the
comparable period of 2018. Net cash used during the first six months of 2018 was offset, in part, by cash in the amount of $10.0 million received as aresult of the AstraZeneca Collaboration, while
net cash used during thefirst six months of 2019 was offset in part by the $0.7 million withholding tax refund and also lower level of expenses due to the cost reduction.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities. Net cash provided by investing activities during the six month period ended June 30, 2019 was approximately $8.7 million compared with
approximately $28.3 million used in investment activitiesin the comparable period of 2018. Changes in net cash provided by (used in) investing activities during these periods were attributable
mainly to higher levels of proceeds from the maturity of short-term bank deposits by approximately $18.7 million and lower investment in short-term bank deposits by approximately $17.9 million.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was $7.5 million in the first six months of 2019 compared with $20.6 million in the comparable period of 2018.
The sources of cash provided by financing activities for the first six months of 2019 consisted of proceeds received from the sale of ordinary shares under the May 2018 ATM facility and
exercise of stock options, while the sources of cash provided by financing activities for the first six months of 2018 consisted of proceeds received from the issuance of ordinary shares and
warrantsin aregistered direct offering in June 2018 and the exercise of stock options.

Net Liquidity. Liquidity refersto liquid financial assets available to fund the Company’s business operations and pay for near-term obligations. These liquid financial assets mostly consist of
cash and cash equivalents, as well as short-term bank deposits. As of June 30, 2019, the Company had total cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and short-term bank deposits of approximately
$37.0 million.
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August 5, 2019
Dear Shareholder,

You are cordialy invited to attend, and notice is hereby given of, the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Compugen Ltd. (the “Company”) to be held at the Company’s offices at 26
Harokmim Street, Bldg D, Holon, Israel, on September 19, 2019 at 3:00 PM (Israel time) (the “Meeting”) for the following purposes:

To re-elect five (5) directors to serve as members of the Board of Directors; to elect two (2) new directors to serve as members of the Board of Directors;

To increase the Company’s authorized share capital and to amend and restate the Company’s memorandum and articles of association to reflect the same;

To approve an amendment to the Company’s Compensation Policy; and

To re-appoint Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer (amember of Ernst and Y oung Global), as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019, and until immediately following the next annual general meeting.

Eal SR

At the Meeting, you will also have an opportunity to receive and consider the auditors' report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2018; thisitem will not involve avote of the shareholders.

Should changes be made to any item on the agenda for the Meeting after the publication of this Proxy Statement, the Company will communicate the changes to its shareholders through the
publication of a press release, acopy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on Form 6-K and with the Israeli Securities Authority.

Only shareholders of record at the close of business day on August 12, 2019, the record date for determining those shareholders eligible to vote at the Meeting, are entitled to vote at the
Meeting and at any postponements or adjournments thereof. All such shareholders are cordially invited to attend the Meeting in person.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Meeting, you are urged to promptly complete, date and sign the enclosed proxy and to mail it in the enclosed envelope, which requires no postage if mailed
in the United States. A shareholder, whose shares are registered with a member of the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Ltd. ("TASE"), and intends to vote his or her shares by proxy, should deliver or
mail (via registered mail) his or her completed proxy to the Company’s offices, attention: General Counsel, together with an ownership certificate confirming his or her ownership of the
Company's shares on the record date, which certificate must be approved by a recognized financial institution, i.e. that TASE member through which he or she hold their shares, as required by
the Israeli Companies Regulations (Proof of Ownership of Sharesfor Voting at General Meeting) of 2000, as amended. Such shareholder is entitled to receive the ownership certificate in abranch
of the relevant TASE member or by mail to his or her address, if the shareholder so requested. Such a request must be made in advance for a particular securities account. Alternatively,
shareholders who hold shares through members of TASE may vote electronically viathe electronic voting system of the Israel Securities Authority, up to six (6) hours before the time set for the
Meeting. If applicable, you may request instructions about electronic voting from the TASE member through which you hold your shares.

Execution and return of your proxy will not deprive you of your right to attend the Meeting and vote in person, and any person giving a proxy has the right to revoke it any time before it is
exercised.

Joint holders of shares should take note that, pursuant to Article 37(d) of the Articles of Association of the Company, the vote of the senior holder who tenders a vote, in person, by proxy, by
proxy card or by electronic voting, will be accepted to the exclusion of any vote(s) of the other joint holder(s), and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names
appear in the Company’s register of shareholders.

A proxy will be effective only if it isreceived at the Company’soffice no later than twenty four (24) hoursprior to thetime of the Meeting (i.e. 3:00 PM Israel time on September 18, 2019), or —
in the case of shareholdersvoting electronically (asdescribed above) —no later than six (6) hoursprior to thetime of the Meeting (i.e., 9:00 AM (Israel time) on September 19, 2019).

By Order of the Board of Directors,

[s/ Mr. Paul Sekhri
Paul Sekhri

Chairman of the Board
Holon, Israel

August 5, 2019




PROXY STATEMENT
COMPUGEN LTD.
26 Harokmim Street, Bldg D
Holon, Israel
2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 19, 2019

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to the holders of ordinary shares, New Israeli Shekels (“NIS’) 0.01 nominal (par) value per share (“Ordinary Shares’ or “Shares”), of Compugen Ltd.
(“Compugen” or the “Company”) in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of Directors’) of proxies for use at the Company’s 2019
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof (the “ M eeting”).
The Meeting will be held on September 19, 2019, at 3:00 PM (Israel time), at the Company’s offices at 26 Harokmim Street, Bldg D, Holon, Israel, for the following purposes:

1. Tore-elect five (5) directorsto serve as members of the Board of Directors; to elect two (2) new directors to serve as members of the Board of Directors;

2. Toincrease the Company’s authorized share capital and to amend and restate the Company’s memorandum and articles of association to reflect the same;

3. To approve an amendment to the Company’s Compensation Policy; and

4. To re-appoint Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer (a member of Ernst and Young Global), as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019, and until immediately following the next annual general meeting.

In addition, at the Meeting, shareholders will also have an opportunity to receive and consider the auditors' report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2018. Thisitem will not involve avote of the shareholders.

Should changes be made to any item on the agenda for the Meeting after the publication of this Proxy Statement, the Company will communicate the changes to its shareholders through the
publication of apress release, acopy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the“SEC”) on Form 6-K and with the I sraeli Securities Authority.

RECORD DATE AND VOTING RIGHTS

Only holders of record of Ordinary Shares at the close of business on Thursday, August 12, 2019, the record date for determining those shareholders eligible to vote at the Meeting, will be
entitled to notice of and to vote at the Meeting and any postponements or adjournments thereof. At such time, each issued and outstanding Ordinary Share will be entitled to one vote upon
each of the matters to be presented at the Meeting.

PROXY PROCEDURE
A form of proxy for use at the Meeting and areturn envelope for the proxy are also enclosed.

If specified by a shareholder on the form of proxy, the Shares represented thereby will be voted in accordance with such specification. If achoiceis not specified by a shareholder with respect to
any proposal, the form of proxy will be voted "FOR" any such proposal and in the discretion of the proxies with respect to all other matters which may properly come before the meeting and any
and all adjournments thereof. On all matters considered at the Meeting, abstentions and broker non-votes will be treated as neither a vote “FOR” nor “AGAINST” the matter, although they will
be counted in determining if a quorum is present. Broker non-votes are votes that brokers holding shares of record for their clients are, pursuant to applicable stock exchange or other rules,
precluded from casting in respect of certain non-routine proposals because such brokers have not received specific instructions from their clients as to the manner in which such shares should
be voted on those proposals and as to which the brokers have advised the Company that, accordingly, they lack voting authority.




Shareholders whose shares are registered with a member of the TASE should deliver or mail (via registered mail) their completed proxy to the Company’s office, attention: General Counsel,
together with an ownership certificate confirming his or her share ownership as of the record date, which certificate must be approved by arecognized financial institution, i.e. that TASE member
through which he or she hold their shares, as required by the Israeli Companies Regulations (Proof of Ownership of Sharesfor Voting at General Meeting) of 2000, as amended. Such shareholder
is entitled to receive the ownership certificate in a branch of the relevant TASE member or by mail to his or her address, if the shareholder so requested. Such a request must be made in advance
for a particular securities account. Alternatively, shareholders who hold shares through members of TASE may vote electronically via the electronic voting system of the Israel Securities
Authority up to six (6) hours before the time set for the Meeting. If applicable, shareholders may request instructions about electronic voting from the TASE member through which they hold
their shares.

A proxy will be effective only if it isreceived at the Company’s office no later than twenty four (24) hoursprior to thetime of the Meeting (i.e. 3:00 PM |srael time on September 18, 2019), or —
in the case of shareholders voting electronically (as described above) — no later than six (6) hours prior to the time of the Meeting (i.e. no later than 9:00 AM (Israel time) on September 19,
2019).

Shareholders may revoke the authority granted by their execution of proxies at any time before the effective exercise thereof by: (i) filing with the Company a written notice of revocation or duly
executed proxy bearing alater date; (ii) electronically voting at a later date; or (iii) voting in person at the Meeting. However, if a shareholder attends the Meeting and does not elect to vote in
person, hisor her proxy or electronic voting will not be revoked.

Proxies for use at the Meeting are being solicited by the Board of Directors of the Company chiefly by mail. The Company will bear the cost for the solicitation of the proxies, including postage,
printing and handling, and will reimburse the reasonabl e expenses of brokerage firms and others for forwarding material to beneficial owners of Ordinary Shares. In addition to solicitation by mail,
certain of the Company’s officers, directors, employees, consultants and agents may solicit proxies by telephone, electronic mail or other personal contact. None of the aforementioned officers,
directors, employees, consultants or agents of the Company will receive additional compensation for such solicitation.

QUORUM
Two (2) or more shareholders, present in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, and holding together Ordinary Shares conferring in the aggregate twenty five percent (25%) or
more of the voting power of the Company, shall constitute a quorum at the Meeting. If within half an hour from the time set for the meeting a quorum is not present, the Meeting shall stand
adjourned to October 2, 2019, at the same time and place or to such other later day, time and place as the directors may determine and specify in the publication with respect to such adjourned
General Meeting. At such adjourned meeting, any two (2) shareholders present in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, shall constitute aquorum.
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF SECURITIESBY PRINCIPAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information as of July 31, 2019 regarding (i) persons or entities known to the Company to beneficially own more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding
Ordinary Shares, (ii) each “office holder”?, as such term is defined in the Israeli Companies Law, 5759-1999 (the “Companies Law") of the Company (the “ Office Holders") known to the Company
to beneficially own more than 1% of the Company’sissued and outstanding Ordinary Shares; and (iii) all Office Holders as agroup.

Theinformation contained in the table below has been obtained from the Company's records or disclosed in public filings with the SEC.

Except where otherwise indicated, and except pursuant to community property laws, we believe, based on information furnished by such owners, that the beneficial owners of the Ordinary
Shares listed below have sole investment and voting power with respect to such Shares.

Total “Number of Ordinary Shares Beneficially Owned” in the table below include Shares that may be acquired by an individual or group upon the exercise of options that are either currently
exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of July 31, 2019.

1 The term “ Office Holder” as defined in the Companies Law includes a director, the chief executive officer, an executive vice president, a vice president, any other person fulfilling or assuming any of the foregoing
positions without regard to such person’s title and any manager who is directly subordinated to the chief executive officer. In addition to the current nine members of our Board, the Company defines an additional
eight individuals to be Office Holders.




The shareholders listed below do not have any different voting rights from any of our other shareholders.

Number of Per cent of
Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Beneficially Beneficially
Beneficial Owner Owned Owned®
ARK Investment Management LLC® 7,105,958 11.39%
Anat Cohen-Dayag 1,018,687 1.61%
All Office Holders, including directors, as a group, (consists of 15 persons) 2,774,039 4.27%
® Based upon 62,394,260 Ordinary Sharesissued and outstanding as of July 31, 2019.
@ Based upon information provided by the shareholder in its Form 13G filed with the SEC on February 14, 2019. With respect to the ordinary shares reported in the Schedule 13G, ARK

Investment Management LLC (ARK) is indicated as having (i) sole voting and dispositive power with respect to 6,906,103 ordinary shares, (ii) shared voting power with respect to
56,726 ordinary shares and (iii) shared dispositive power with respect to 199,855 ordinary shares. Furthermore, in such filing ARK indicated aggregate beneficial ownership of 7,105,958
ordinary shares. The address of the principal business office of ARK Investment Management LLC is 3 East 28th Street, 7th Floor, New Y ork, NY 10016.

For information relating to the remuneration of our five most highly compensated Office Holders with respect to the year ended December 31, 2018, please see "Item 6. Directors, Senior
Management and Employees — B. Compensation — Individual Compensation of Covered Office Holders" in our annual report for 2018 on Form 20-F, which was filed with the SEC on March 21,
2019 (File No. 000-30902), or the 2018 20F.
ITEM NO.1
RE-ELECTION OF FIVE (5) DIRECTORS;
ELECTION OF TWO (2) NEW DIRECTORS
Background

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) provide that the number of directorsto serve on our Board shall be no less than five (5) and no more than fourteen (14).

The Board is currently comprised of nine (9) members — all of whom are serving terms that expire at the end of the Meeting, and out of which seven (7) members stand for re-election or election
for afurther term of service.

Directors are generally elected at each annual general meeting for aterm starting at such meeting and until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of shareholders and, in accordance
with our Articles, may also be appointed by our Board in between annual general meetings.

General
Election

At the Meeting, seven (7) of the Company's current nine (9) directors are candidates for election or re-election. Following the recommendation of our Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee to the Board in accordance with Rule 5605(€) of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules, it is proposed that Dr. Anat Cohen-Dayag, Mr. Gilead Halevy, Ms. Kinneret Livnat Savitzky, Mr. Paul
Sekhri and Mr. Sandy Zweifach be re-elected as directors and that Dr. Jean-Pierre Bizzari and Mr. Eran Perry be elected as directors. If re-elected, or elected, as applicable, each nominated director
will serve for aterm ending on the date of the 2020 annual general meeting.

In accordance with Israeli law, a nominee for service as a director must submit a declaration to the Company, prior to his or her election, specifying that he or she has the requisite qualifications
to serve as a director, and the ability to devote the appropriate time to performing his or her duties as such. All candidates for election as directors at the Meeting have declared in writing that
they possess the requisite skills and expertise, aswell as sufficient time, to perform their duties as directors of the Company. The Company is not aware of any reason why any of the nominees, if
elected, would be unable to serve as adirector.




The following are brief biographies of each of the seven (7) nominees, based upon the records of the Company and information furnished to it by them:

Paul Sekhri joined Compugen’s Board of Directors as its Chairman in October 2017. Paul Sekhri was appointed the President and CEO of eGenesis, Inc. in January 2019. Prior to joining
eGenesis, Inc, Mr. Sekhri served as President and CEO of Lycera Corp. from February 2015 through December 2018. From April 2014 through January 2015, Mr. Sekhri served as Senior
Vice President, Integrated Care for Sanofi. From May 2013 through March 2014, Mr. Sekhri served as Group Executive Vice President, Global Business Development and Chief Strategy
Officer for Teva Pharmaceutical Industries, Ltd. Prior to joining Teva, Mr. Sekhri spent five years as Operating Partner and Head of the Biotechnology Operating Group at TPG Biotech, the
life sciences venture capital arm of TPG Capital. From 2004 to 2009, Mr. Sekhri was Founder, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Cerimon Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Prior to founding
Cerimon, Mr. Sekhri was President and Chief Business Officer of ARIAD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Previously, Mr. Sekhri spent four years at Novartis, as Senior Vice President, and Head of
Global Search and Evaluation, Business Development and Licensing for Novartis Pharma AG. Mr. Sekhri also developed the Disease Area Strategy for Novartis, identifying those specific
therapeutic areas upon which the company would focus. Mr. Sekhri’s first role at Novartis was as Global Head, Early Commercial Development. Mr. Sekhri completed graduate work in
Neuroscience at the University of Maryland School of Medicine, where he also received his BS in Zoology. Mr. Sekhri is currently a member of the Board of Directors of Veeva Systems
Inc., Ipsen S.A., Chairman of the Board of Supervisory Directors of Pharming N.V. and Topas Therapeutics GmbH, and Chairman of the Board of Petra Pharma. Additionally, Mr. Sekhri is
on the Board of Directors of the TB Alliance, and, as an avid classical music enthusiast, is on the Boards of The Metropolitan Opera, The Knights and the English Concert in America. Mr.
Sekhri is aso an active member of the Patrons Council of Carnegie Hall.

Dr. Jean-Pierre Bizzari joined Compugen's Board of Directors in September 2018. Dr. Bizzari is a world-renowned oncology expert who brings to Compugen over 35 years of broad
experience in oncology drug development. Dr. Bizzari served as Executive Vice President and Global Head of Oncology at Celgene Corporation, responsible for Celgene's clinical
development and operations-statistics teams across the United States, Europe and Asia/Japan where he oversaw the development and approval of leading oncology products, including
REVLIMID® (lenalidomide), VIDAZA® (azacitidine), ISTODAX® (romidepsin) and ABRAXANE® (nab-paclitaxel). In addition, he was chairman of Celgene's hematology oncology
development committee and a member of the company’s management committee. Prior to Celgene, Dr. Bizzari was the Vice President, Clinical Oncology Development for Sanofi-Aventis
(formerly Rhéne-Poulenc, Rhone-Poulenc Rorer and Aventis) where he oversaw the approval of Eloxatin® (oxaliplatin), Taxotere® (docetaxel) and Elitek® (rasburicase). Dr. Bizzari joined
the pharmaceutical industry in 1983 as Head of Oncology at the Institut de Recherches Internationales SERVIER (France). Dr. Bizzari is a member of the Scientific Advisory Board of the
French National Cancer Institute, and the European Organization of Research and Treatment of Cancer and Chairman of the New Drug Advisory Committee. He also serves on the boards
of Halozyme Therapeutics, Onxeo, Oxford BioTherapeutics, Pieris Pharmaceuticals, Nordic Nanovector and Transgene. Dr. Bizzari received his medical degree from the Nice Medical
School and has trained at the Pitié-Salpétriére Hospital in Paris, The Ontario Institute for Cancer Research, and The McGill Rosalind and Morris Goodman Cancer Research Centre
(formerly the McGill Cancer Center) in Montreal, Canada.

Anat Cohen-Dayag, Ph.D. joined Compugen’s Board of Directors in February 2014. Dr. Cohen-Dayag joined Compugen in 2002 and held various positions. In November 2008, Dr. Cohen-
Dayag was appointed as Vice President, Research and Development. In June 2009, Dr. Cohen-Dayag was appointed as co-Chief Executive Officer of Compugen and in March 2010 Dr.
Cohen-Dayag was appointed as Compugen’s President and CEO. Prior to joining Compugen, Dr. Cohen-Dayag was head of research and development and member of the Executive
Management at Mindsense Biosystems Ltd. Prior to Mindsense Biosystems Ltd., Dr. Cohen-Dayag served as a scientist at the R& D department of Orgenics Ltd. Dr. Cohen-Dayag holds a
B.Sc. in Biology from the Ben-Gurion University, Israel, and an M.Sc. in Chemica Immunology and a Ph.D. in Cellular Biology, both from the Weizmann Institute of Science, Israel.
Additionally, Dr. Cohen-Dayag is adirector of Ramot at Tel-Aviv University Ltd., and adirector of the IATI (Israeli Advanced Technologies Industries).

Gilead Halevy joined Compugen’s Board of Directors in June 2018. Mr. Halevy serves as a general partner of Kedma Capital Partners, aleading Israeli private equity fund, of which heis
also a founding member, since 2006. Prior to establishing Kedma, Mr. Halevy served as a Director at Giza Venture Capital from 2001 to 2006, where he led investments in communication
and information technology companies, and directed Giza's European business activities. From 1998 to 2001, Mr. Halevy practiced law at White & Case LLP. Mr. Halevy was also a
founding member of the White & Case Israel practice group during that time. Mr. Halevy currently serves as chairman of Brand Industries Ltd. (TASE), Carmor Integrated Solutions Ltd.,
Carmel Wineries; Continuity Software Ltd. and SAL Holdings. Mr. Halevy holds a B.A. in Humanities (multidisciplinary program for exceptional students) and an LL.B. (Magna Cum
Laude) both from the Hebrew University of Jerusalem.




Eran Perry joined Compugen's Board of Directorsin July, 2019. Mr. Perry serves as Managing Director and Chairman of the Investment Committee of MIl Fund & Labs, a dermatol ogy-
focused venture capital fund which he co-founded in 2018. Since 2017, Mr. Perry has been a co-founder and active board member of ICD Pharma, a developer of cannabis-based
pharmaceuticals. Mr. Perry is also the co-founder and board member of several pharmaceutical companiesincluding Musli Thyropeutics, Seanergy Dermatology, and Follicle Pharma. From
2006 to 2016, he served as Managing Director and Partner of Israel Healthcare Ventures (IHCV), and represented IHCV in numerous portfolio companies. Prior to IHCV, Mr. Perry was a
consultant in McKinsey & Company, serving clients worldwide in the pharmaceutical industry, among others. Prior to that, he was a member of the Global Marketing group at Novartis
Oncology. Before moving to the private sector, Mr. Perry served in the Israeli Ministry of Justice. Mr. Perry holds an MBA from Columbia University, and an LL.B. in Law and aB.Sc. in
Mathematics and Computer Science, both from Tel Aviv University.

Kinneret Livnat Savitzky joined Compugen’'s Board of Directorsin June 2018. Since October 2017, Dr. Livnat Savitzky served as the Interim CEO, since January 2018 as a board member,
and since May 2018 also as CEO of FutuRx Ltd., an Israeli biotechnology accelerator established by OrbiMed Israel Partners, Johnson & Johnson Innovation and Takeda Ventures Inc.
(the venture group of Takeda Pharmaceutical Company) Dr. Livnat Savitzky also serves on the boards of the following biotechnology or healthcare companies: as an active chairperson in
KAHR Medical and as a director in Hadasit Medical Research and Development and DreaMed Diabetes. In addition, Dr. Livnat Savitzky serves as a consultant to other pharmaceutical
development companies and related funds. From 2010 to 2016, Dr. Livnat Savitzky served as CEO of BioLineRX Ltd., a Nasdag-listed drug development company focused on oncology
and immunology. During her tenure, BioLineRX signed a strategic collaboration with Novartis as well as licensing agreements with Merck (MSD), Genentech and others. Prior to being
appointed CEO of BioLineRX, Dr. Livnat Savitzky held various R& D management positions at BioLineRX and Compugen. Dr. Livnat Savitzky holds a B.Sc. in Biology from The Hebrew
University of Jerusalem, and an M.S.c and Ph.D with distinction in Human Genetics from Tel Aviv University.

Sanford (Sandy) Zweifach joined Compugen’s Board of Directorsin June 2018. Mr. Zweifach is the Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Nuvelution Pharma, Inc. since 2015. From 2010
to 2015, Mr. Zweifach served as CEO of Ascendancy Healthcare, Inc., which he also founded. He has also been a Partner at Reedland Capital Partners, a boutique investment bank, from
2005 to 2010, where he headed itslife sciencesM& A and advisory efforts. From 2003 to 2005, he was CEO of Pathways Diagnostics, a biomarker development company. Mr. Zweifach was
aManaging Director/CFO of Bay City Capital, a venture capital/merchant banking firm, specializing in the biotech and the life science industry, where he was responsible for oversight of
the firm’s finance department, as well as President of the firm's M&A and financing division. Prior to this, he was President and CFO of Epoch Biosciences, which was acquired by
Nanogen in 2004. Currently, heisaChairman of Lyric Pharmaceuticals Inc., adirector of Realm Therapeutics, Inc., and Chairman of IMIDomics, S.L. Earlier in his career, Mr. Zweifach wasa
Certified Public Accountant (US) for Coopers & Lybrand and held various investment banking positions focusing on biotech. He received his B.A. in Biology from UC San Diego and an
M.S. in Human Physiology from UC Davis.

New Directors

The members of our Board have approved the appointment of each of Dr. Jean-Pierre Bizzari and Mr. Eran Perry, for service as directors and are now recommending that the shareholders approve
such appointment, considering their broad experience, ranging from business, therapeutics, financial and board experience. A brief biography for each may be found above. Together, they bring
experience from the pharmaceutical and healthcare industries, including with respect to oncology drug development companies, aswell as capital markets experience, which support the members'
belief that such appointment will, among other benefits to the Company, further enhance and support the anticipated growth and business opportunities of Compugen.

Indemnification, |nsurance and Exemption

The Companies Law and our Articles allow the Company to indemnify and insure its Office Holders, including directors, and to exempt them from liability for certain breaches of their duty of care,
to the fullest extent permitted by law. Indemnification letters, covering exemption from, indemnification and insurance of liabilities imposed on our Office Holders, including directors, under the
Companies Law and the Israeli Securities Law, were approved for any director who may be appointed in the future. Accordingly, such letters were granted to each of the above-mentioned
nominees. We currently hold directors' and officers' liability insurance policy for the benefit of all of our Office Holders, including our directors, the terms of which are consistent with the
limitations set forth in our compensation policy.




For information relating to the compensation paid to our directors, see"ltem 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees— B. Compensation " in our 2018 20F.

Other than Dr. Cohen-Dayag, our President and CEO, none of the nominated directors have any relationship with the Company. Our Board determined that all of the nominees (except for Dr.
Cohen-Dayag) qualify as “independent directors,” as defined by the Nasdaq listing rules, and our Audit Committee determined that they also qualify as “independent directors” pursuant to
regulations under the Israeli Companies Law.

It isproposed that the following resolutions be adopted at the M eeting:

“RESOLVED that:

@

(b)

©

(d)

C)

()

@

Mr. Paul Sekhri be, and he hereby is, re-elected to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company for a term of approximately one year expiring at the end of the annual
general meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020, and when his successor has been duly elected; and

Dr. Jean-Pierre Bizzari be, and he hereby is, elected to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company for aterm of approximately one year expiring at the end of the annual
general meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020 and when his successor has been duly elected; and

Dr. Anat Cohen-Dayag be, and she hereby is, re-elected to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company for a term of approximately one year expiring at the end of the
annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020 and when her successor has been duly elected; and

Mr. Gilead Halevy be, and he hereby is, re-elected to serve as amember of the Board of Directors of the Company for aterm of approximately one year expiring at the end of the annual
general meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020 and when his successor has been duly elected; and

Mr. Eran Perry be, and he hereby is, elected to serve as amember of the Board of Directors of the Company for aterm of approximately one year expiring at the end of the annual general
meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020 and when his successor has been duly elected; and

Ms. Kinneret Livnat Savitzky be, and she hereby is, re-elected to serve as amember of the Board of Directors of the Company for aterm of approximately one year expiring at the end of
the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020 and when her successor has been duly elected; and

Mr. Sandy Zweifach be, and he hereby is, re-elected to serve as amember of the Board of Directors of the Company for aterm of approximately one year expiring at the end of the annual
general meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held in 2020 and when his successor has been duly elected.”

Required Vote

An affirmative vote of a majority of the Ordinary Shares represented and voting on this proposal at the Meeting in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, is required for the
approval of each of the above resolutions.

The election of each of these nominees will be voted upon separately at the Meeting.

The Board recommendsthat the shareholdersvote“ FOR” the proposed resolutions.

As each of the seven (7) directors who are candidates for re-election or election, as applicable, has a personal interest in the above resolutionsregarding hisor her election, they refrained
from making a recommendation, each with respect to hisor her own nomination.




ITEM NO.2

INCREASE THE COMPANY’SAUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL AND AMEND AND RESTATE
THE COMPANY'SMEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION TO REFLECT THE SAME

Background

Under each of our Memorandum of Association (“Memorandum”) and Articles, there is specification of the Company’s current authorized share capital, which is NIS 1,000,000 (one million New
Israeli Shekels) divided into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of anominal value of NIS 0.01 each.

Such authorized share capital of the Company has been issued throughout its history as well asin the Company's public offerings and private equity issuance of its ordinary sharesin 2018. The
Company wishes to maintain a sufficient reserve of authorized but unissued ordinary shares available, in order to allow the Company to have sufficient authorized share capital to ensure its
future growth and potential future needs, to the extent necessary for various corporate purposes, and to support its ongoing activities and clinical program, including without limitation, by way
of offerings of its ordinary shares and the issuance of its ordinary sharesin connection with any future corporate strategic transaction or equity grant. Unless the authorized shareisincreased as
requested bel ow — the ability of the Company to perform such actions will beimpaired. As of July 31, 2019, the Company had outstanding 62,394,260 ordinary shares.

It is now proposed to increase the Company's authorized share capital from NIS 1,000,000 to NIS 2,000,000 divided into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of a nomina value of NIS 0.01 each, by
amending Section 4 of the Memorandum and Section 5 of the Articles to reflect such increase.

The Memorandum and Articles, including the revised authorized share capital, are attached as Annexes A1l (the Memorandum in Hebrew), A2 (the Memorandum in English) and A3 (the
Articles), respectively, to this Proxy Statement.

It isproposed that the following resolution be adopted at the M eeting:
“RESOLVED, to increase the Company’s authorized share capital by NIS 1,000,000 (one million New Isragli Shekels), to NIS 2,000,000 (two million New Israeli Shekels) divided into
200,000,000 (two hundred million) Ordinary Shares, of a nominal value of NIS 0.01 each, and to amend and restate the Company’s Memorandum and Articles to reflect the same, as set forth
in Annexes A1 (the Memorandum in Hebrew), A2 (the Memorandum in English) and A3 (the Articles), respectively, to the Proxy Statement.”

Required Vote

An affirmative vote of a majority of the Ordinary Shares represented and voting on this proposal at the Meeting in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, is required for the
approval of the above resolution.

TheBoard recommendsthat the shareholdersvote“ FOR” the proposed resolution.
ITEM NO.3
AMENDMENT TO THE COMPANY'S COMPENSATION POLICY
As required under the Companies Law, the Company maintains a compensation policy which provides a framework for terms of office and employment of our Office Holders, including
compensation, equity awards, severance and other benefits, the grant of an exemption from liability, insurance, and an undertaking to indemnify or indemnification. The adoption of the
Company’s Compensation Policy was originally approved by our Shareholders on September 17, 2013, and amendments were subsequently approved on July 29, 2015 and on October 19, 2017

(the “Compensation Policy”). The Companies Law also requires that the Compensation Policy be reviewed from time to time by the Compensation Committee and the Board, to consider its
adequacy and propose amendments to the extent it finds that the Compensation Policy isinadequate or should otherwise be amended.




Our Compensation Policy provides, among other things, that the Company purchase and periodically renew, at the Company’s expense, insurance coverage in respect of the liability of its current
and future Office Holders (D& O Insurance”), to the maximum extent permitted by law, of up to US$50 million and the annual premium shall be up to US$350,000, and will include coverage with
respect to any public offering of shares or other securities of the Company. In addition, such insurance coverage may include “run-off” provisions covering an Office Holder' s liability following
termination of service or employment. The Compensation Policy authorizes our Compensation Committee to increase the coverage purchased, and/or the premium paid for such policies if such
increase exceeds the defined caps set forth above by up to 20% (beyond such caps) in any year, as compared to the previous year, or cumulatively for a number of years, without additional
shareholders’ approval, if and to the extent permitted under the Companies Law. Due to an increased number of lawsuits against U.S. listed companies, specifically securities law class actions,
and significant payments made recently by insurance companies to settle such claims and actions, our external insurance advisor indicated that current trends in the D& O Insurance markets
show that (i) fewer insurance companies are offering D& O Insurance for Israeli U.S. listed companies, and (ii) the premiums for such policies have significantly increased market wide, and are
currently well beyond the cap currently in our Compensation Policy. These trends result in Compugen’s premium limitations under the Compensation Policy to be inadequate.

Therefore, our Compensation Committee and Board have approved, subject to shareholder approval, an amendment to the Compensation Policy according to which, the cap under the
Compensation Policy with respect to the premium paid for D& O Insurance, shall be up to $900,000 per year, to align such cap to current trends in the D& O Insurance market, and to ensure
adequate coverage to the extent permitted by law.

In their review and approval of the proposed amendment to the Compensation Policy detailed above, our Compensation Committee and the Board took into account, among others, the
considerations, principles and provisions set forth in the Companies Law.

Other than the foregoing increase in the cap under the Compensation Policy with respect to the annual premium paid for the Company’s D& O Insurance, the terms of the Compensation Policy
shall remain as currently in effect.

It isproposed that the following resolution be adopted at the M eeting:

“RESOLVED, that the amendment to the Compensation Policy with respect to the maximum annual premium paid under the Company’s D& O Insurance policy, as set forth in the Proxy
Statement for the 2019 Annual General Meeting be, and hereby is, approved and adopted.”

Required Vote

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares represented and voting on this proposal at the Meeting in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting is
required for the approval of the amendment to our Compensation Policy; provided that, the majority of the shares voted in favor of this proposal are not held by "controlling shareholders" or
shareholders with "personal interest” in the approval of such proposal, not taking into account any abstention, or that the total number of shares referred to above voted against this proposal,
does not exceed two percent of the aggregate voting rights in the Company.

Under the Companies Law, in general, a person will be deemed to be a controlling shareholder if that person has the power to direct the activities of the company, otherwise than by reason of
being adirector or other Office Holder, and a person is deemed to have a personal interest if any member of the shareholder’simmediate family, or theimmediate family of a shareholder's spouse,
has a personal interest in the adoption of the proposal. In addition, you are deemed to have a personal interest if a company, other than Compugen, that is affiliated with you, has a personal
interest in the adoption of the proposal. Such company is a company in which you or amember of your immediate family serves as a director or chief executive officer, has the right to appoint a
director or the chief executive officer, or owns 5% or more of the outstanding shares. However, you are not deemed to have a personal interest in the adoption of the proposal if your interest in
such proposal arises solely from your ownership of our shares, or from a matter that is not related to arelationship with a controlling shareholder.

Please note that we consider it highly unlikely that any of our shareholdersisa controlling shareholder, or hasa personal interest in this proposal. However, as required under Israeli law, the
enclosed form of proxy requires that you specifically indicate whether you are, or are not, a controlling shareholder or have a personal interest in this proposal. Without indicating to this effect —
we will not be able to count your vote with respect to this proposal.

The Board recommendsthat the shareholdersvote“ FOR” the proposed resolution.




ITEM NO. 4
RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Background

The Companies Law and our Articles provide that an independent auditor of the Company shall be appointed at the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company, and that the
independent auditor servein this position until immediately following the date of the next annual general meeting.

General

The Company’s current independent registered public accounting firm, Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer, a member of Ernst & Young Global (“KFGK™), is hereby being nominated for re-
appointment as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, and until the next annual general meeting of shareholders.

KFGK has served as the Company independent auditor since 2002 and has no relationship with the Company or with any affiliate of the Company except as auditor, tax consultant and as a
provider of other consultancy services.

As aresult of the combined provisions of the Israeli law, the Articles and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm requires the
approval of the shareholders of the Company, and its remuneration requires the approval of the Board, following approval and recommendation by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
and the Board have reviewed, and are satisfied with, the performance of KFGK, and have approved and are recommending to shareholders to approve their re-appointment as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, and until the next annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, KFGK. These services may include
audit services, tax services and other consulting services. Additional services may be pre-approved by the Audit Committee on an individual basis. Once services have been pre-approved, the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and management then report to the Audit Committee on a periodic basis regarding the extent of services actualy provided in
accordance with the applicable pre-approval, and regarding the fees for the services performed. Such fees for 2018 and 2017 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with these
procedures.

The following table presents the aggregate amounts of fees paid or to be paid by the Company to KFGK for the services rendered in the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Audit Fees $ 148500 $ 157,500
Audit Related Fees $ 90000 $ 15000
Tax Fees $ 6500 $ 2,500
Total $ 245,000 $ 175,000
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“Audit Fees” are fees for professional services rendered by our principal accountant in connection with the integrated audit (including review of internal control over financial reporting) of our
consolidated annual financial statements and review of our unaudited interim financial statements;

“Audit Related Fees” are fees for assurance and related services rendered by our principal accountant in connection with the audit and other assignments including consultancy and consents
with respect to an underwritten public offering and related prospectus supplements filed with the SEC;

“Tax Fees’ are fees for services rendered by our principal accountant in connection with tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning which in year 2018 and 2017 were consultancy relating to
withholding tax on paymentsto foreign suppliers and Annual Israeli tax reports.

It isproposed that the following resolution be adopted at the M eeting:

“RESOLVED, that Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer, amember of Ernst & Y oung Global, be re-appointed as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2019, and until the next annual general meeting of shareholders.”

Required Vote

The affirmative vote of a majority of the Ordinary Shares represented and voting on this proposal at the Meeting in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, is required for the
approval of the above resolution.

TheBoard recommendsthat the shareholdersvote “ FOR” the proposed resolution.
RECEIPT AND CONSIDERATION OF THE REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM AND THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the Meeting, our auditor’s report and the audited consolidated financia statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 will be presented. The Company will hold a
discussion with respect thereto at the Meeting, as required by the Companies Law. Thisitem will not involve a vote of the shareholders.

The foregoing auditor's report and the audited consolidated financial statements, aswell as our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2018 (filed with the SEC on March 21,
2019), may be viewed on our website — http://www. http://cgen.com/investors/reports, through the EDGAR website of the SEC at www.sec.gov, through the Israeli Securities Authority's
electronic filing system at: http://www.magna.isa.gov.il, or through the website of the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Ltd. at: http://maya.tase.co.il. None of the auditor's report, audited consolidated
financial statements, Form 20-F or the contents of our website form part of the proxy solicitation material.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

15/ Paul Sekhri

Paul Sekhri

Chairman of the Board
Holon, Israel

August 5, 2019
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Non-Binding Translation from the Hebrew
Annex A2

Companies Ordinance
Memor andum of Association
of a
Company Limited by Shares

Compugen Ltd.

Kokkkkkkkkkkkkkk

The name of the Company: »n"ya aromp
COMPUGEN LTD.

The purpose of the Company isto engagein any lawful act or activity for which companies may be organized under the I sraeli Companies Law, 1999.
MembersLiability:
Theliability of each of the membersislimited.

Authorized Share Capital:
The share capital of the Company is NIS $,666,8662,000.000 (6re-Two Million New Israeli Shekels) divided into 200,000,000 366,666,606-(©re-Two Hundred Million) Ordinary SharesNIS
0.01 nominal (par) value each.

Therights attached to each class of shareswill be determined in the Company's Articles of Association.

Changes to the Memorandum

The Company may, by a simple majority of the votes cast (abstentions being disregarded), in person, by proxy or by proxy card, or by such other majority as shall be set forth in its
Articles of Association from time to time, change its name; change its purposes; increase its registered (authorized) share capital by creation of new shares in such amount and of such
nominal (par) values and with such rights, preferences and restrictions as the resolution approving the creation of such shares shall provide; consolidate its share capital (issued or
unissued) or any portion thereof and divide it into shares of larger nominal value than the nominal value of its existing shares; subdivide its shares (issued or unissued) or any of them
into shares of smaller nominal value; cancel any unissued shares, provided there is no obligation of the Company, including a contingent obligation, to issue them, and reduce in such
manner its share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled; and/or reduce its share capital in any manner subject to any authorization or consent required by law.

We the undersigned are desirous of being formed into a Company in pursuant to this Memorandum of Association and we respectively agree to take the number of sharesin the capital
of the Company set opposite our respective names.




Annex A3
AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF COMPUGEN LTD.
("Articles")
Juty-13-2637September 19, 2019
PRELIMINARY
Company Name
The name of the Company is"Compugen Ltd." (the "Company").
Purpose

The purpose of the Company isto engage in any lawful act or activity for which companies may be organized under the I sraeli Companies Law, 1999 (the "CompaniesLaw").

Interpretation
@ Unless the subject or the context otherwise requires: (i) words and expressions defined in the Companies Law in force on the date when these Articles or any amendment
thereto, as the case may be, first became effective shall have the same meanings defined therein; (ii) words and expressions importing the singular shall include the plural and

vice versa; (iii) words and expressions importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender; and (iv) words and expressions importing persons shall include
corporate bodies.

(b) The captionsin these Articles are for convenience only and shall not be deemed a part hereof or affect the construction of any provision hereof.

() The specific provisions of these Articles shall supercede the provisions of the Companies Law to the extent permitted under the Companies Law. With respect to any matter
that is not specifically addressed in these Articles, the provisions of the Companies Law shall govern.

Limitation of Liability

The liability of each shareholder for the Company's obligationsis limited to the unpaid sum, if any, owing to the Company in consideration for the issuance of the shares held by such
shareholder.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized Share Capital

The share capital of the Company is NIS +666;666_2,000,000 (ere-two million New Israeli Shekels) divided into 200,000,000466;,606;060 (erie-two hundred million) Ordinary Shares of a
nominal value of NI1S 0.01 each (the "Ordinary Shares”).

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares in respect of which all calls have been fully paid shall confer on their holders the right to attend and to vote at, General Meetings (as defined in Article 26(a) below).
Subject to the rights of holders of shares with limited or preferred rights, Ordinary Shares shall confer upon the holders thereof equal rights to receive dividends and to participate in the
distribution of the assets of the Company upon its winding-up, in proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on account of the nominal value of the shares held by them
respectively and in respect of which such dividends are being paid or such distribution is being made, without regard to any premium paid in excess of the nominal value, if any.




Increase of Share Capital

The Company may, from time to time, increase its share capital by the creation of new shares. Any such increase shall be in such amount and shall be divided into shares of such
nominal amounts, and such shares shall confer such rights and preferences, and shall be subject to such restrictions, as the resolution approving the creation of such shares shall
provide. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the resolution creating such new shares, such new shares shall be subject to all the provisions applicable to the shares of the

original capital.

Special Rights; Modifications of Rights

@ The Company may, from time to time, provide for shares with such preferred or deferred rights or rights of redemption or other special rights and/or such restrictions, whether
in regard to dividends, voting, repayment of share capital or otherwise, as may be stipulated in the resol ution pursuant to which such shares are created.

(b) (0}

(i)

(iif)

If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class, unless otherwise provided by these Articles, may be
modified or abrogated by the Company, subject to the consent in writing of, or sanction of a resolution passed by, the holders of a majority of the issued shares of
such class at a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of such class.

The provisions of these Articles relating to General Meetings shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to any separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of a particular
class; provided, however, that the requisite quorum at any such separate general meeting shall be two or more shareholders present in person or proxy and holding
not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the issued shares of such class.

Unless otherwise provided by these Articles, the enlargement of an existing class of shares, or the issuance of additional shares thereof, or the creation of anew class
of sharesidentical to an existing class of sharesin all respects shall not be deemed, for purposes of this Article 8(b), to modify or abrogate the rights attached to the
previously issued shares of such class or of any other class.

Consolidation, Subdivision, Cancellation and Reduction of Share Capital

@ The Company may, from time to time (subject, however, to the provisions of Article 8(b) hereof and to applicable law):

(0}
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

consolidate and divide any or al of itsissued or unissued share capital into shares of larger nominal value than its existing shares;

subdivideits shares (issued or unissued) or any of them, into shares of smaller nominal value than isfixed by these Articles (subject, however, to the provisions of the
Companies Law), and the resolution whereby any share is subdivided may determine that, as among the holders of the shares resulting from such subdivision, one or
more of the shares may, as compared with the others, have any such preferred or deferred rights or rights of redemption or other special rights, or be subject to any
such restrictions, as the Company has power to attach to unissued or new shares;

cancel any shares, which at the date of the adoption of such resolution have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person, and diminish the amount of its share
capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled; or

reduce its share capital in any manner, subject to any authorization or consent required by law.




10.

11.

(b)

With respect to any consolidation of issued shares into shares of larger nominal value, and with respect to any other action which may result in fractional shares, the board of
directors of the Company (the "Board" or the "Board of Directors') may settle any difficulty which may arise with regard thereto, asit deemsfit, including, inter alia, resort to
one or more of the following actions:

@) determine, asto the holder of shares so consolidated, which issued shares shall be consolidated into each share of larger nominal value;

(ii) allot, in contemplation of or subsequent to such consolidation or other action, such shares or fractional shares sufficient to preclude or remove fractional share
holdings;

(iii) redeem, in the case of redeemable shares, and subject to applicable law, such shares or fractional shares sufficient to preclude or remove fractional share holdings;
(iv)  cause the transfer of fractional shares by certain shareholders of the Company to other shareholders thereof so as to most expediently preclude or remove any
fractional shareholdings, and cause the transferees to pay the transferors the fair value of fractional shares so transferred, and the Board of Directors is hereby

authorized to act as agent for the transferors and transferees with power of substitution for purposes of implementing the provisions of this sub-Article 9(b)(iv).

SHARES

Issuance of Share Certificates; Replacement of Lost Certificates

@ Share certificates shall bear the stamp or seal of the Company and shall bear the manual or printed signature of amember of the Board of Directors (a"Director") and/or of any
other person or persons authorized thereto by the Board of Directors. In the event that any Director or such other authorized person who has signed or whose printed
signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such Director or authorized person before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Company
with the same effect asif it were such Director or authorized person at the date of issue.

(b) Each shareholder shall be entitled to one numbered certificate for all the shares of any class registered in his name, and if the Board of Directors so approves, to several
certificates, each for one or more of such shares.

(c) A share certificate registered in the names of two or more persons shall be delivered to the person first named in the Register (as defined in Article 24(a) below) in respect of
such co-ownership and such delivery shall be deemed sufficient delivery to all co-owners. The Company shall not be obligated to issue more than one share certificate to the
joint holders.

(d) If a share certificate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be replaced, upon payment of such fee, and upon the furnishing of such evidence of ownership and such indemnity,
asthe Board of Directors deem fit.

Reqistered Holder

Except as otherwise provided in these Articles, the Company shall be entitled to treat the registered holder of any share as the absolute owner thereof, and, accordingly, shall not, except
as ordered by acourt of competent jurisdiction, or as required by statute, be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to, or interest in such share on the part of any other person
and the Company shall not be bound by or required to recognize any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any shares or any right whatsoever in respect of any shares other
than an absolute right in the entirety thereof to the registered holder.
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13.

14.

15.

Allotment of Shares

The authorized and unissued shares shall be under the control of the Board of Directors, who shall have the power to allot shares or otherwise dispose of them to such persons, on such
terms and conditions, and at such times, as the Board of Directors may deem fit, and the power to give to any person the option to acquire from the Company any shares, during such
time and for such consideration as the Board of Directors may deem fit.

Payment in | nstallments

If by the terms of allotment of any share, the whole or any part of the price thereof shall be payable in installments, every such installment shall, when due, be paid to the Company by
the then registered holder(s) of the share or the person(s) entitled thereto.

Calls on Shares

@ The Board of Directors may, from time to time, make such calls as it may think appropriate upon shareholders in respect of any sum unpaid in respect of shares held by such
shareholders which is not, by the terms of allotment thereof or otherwise, payable at a fixed time, and each shareholder shall pay the amount of every call so made upon him
(and of each installment thereof if the same is payable in installments), to the person(s) and at the time(s) and place(s) designated by the Board of Directors, as any such time
(s) may be thereafter extended and/or such person(s) or place(s) changed. Unless otherwise stipulated in the resolution of the Board of Directors (and in the notice hereafter
referred to), each payment in response to acall shall be deemed to constitute a pro rata payment on account of all sharesin respect of which such call was made.

(b) Notice of any call shall be given in writing to the shareholder(s) in question not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the time of payment, specifying the time and place of
payment, and designating the person to whom such payment shall be made; provided however, that before the time for any such payment, the Board of Directors may, by
notice in writing to such shareholder(s), revoke such call in whole or in part, extend such time, or alter such person and/or place. In the event of acall payable in installments,
only one notice thereof need be given.

(© If, by the terms of allotment of any share or otherwise, any amount is made payable at any fixed time, every such amount shall be payable at such time asif it were acall duly
made by the Board of Directors and of which due notice had been given, and all the provisions herein contained with respect to such calls shall apply to each such amount.

(d) Thejoint holders of ashare shall bejointly and severally liableto pay all callsin respect thereof and all interest payable thereon.

(e Any amount unpaid in respect of a call shall bear interest from the date on which it is payable until actual payment thereof, at such rate (not exceeding the then prevailing
debitory rate charged by leading commercial banksin Israel), and at such time(s) as the Board of Directors may prescribe. The Board of Directors shall, however, be at liberty
to waive the payment of interest, wholly or in part. No shareholder shall be entitled to receive any dividend or to exercise any privileges as a shareholder until they have paid
all callsfor the time being due and payable on every share held by them whether alone or jointly with any other person along with interest and expenses, if any.

) Upon the allotment of shares, the Board of Directors may provide for differences among the alottees of such shares as to the amount of calls and/or the times of payment
thereof.
Prepayment

With the approval of the Board of Directors, any shareholder may pay to the Company any amount not yet payable in respect of such shareholder's shares, and the Board of Directors
may approve the payment of interest on any such amount until the same would be payable if it had not been paid in advance, at such rate and time(s) as may be approved by the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors may at any time cause the Company to repay all or any part of the money so advanced, without premium or penalty. Nothing in this Article 15 shall
derogate from the right of the Board of Directorsto make any call before or after receipt by the Company of any such advance.
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Forfeiture and Surrender

@

(b)

(©

(d)

()

()

If any shareholder fails to pay any amount payable in respect of a call, or interest thereon as provided for herein, on or before the day fixed for payment of the same, the
Company, by resolution of the Board of Directors, and subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, may at any time thereafter, so long as the said amount or interest
remains unpaid, forfeit al or any of the sharesin respect of which said call had been made. Any expenseincurred by the Company in attempting to collect any such amount or
interest, including, inter alia, attorneys fees and costs of legal suit, shall be added to, and shall, for al purposes (including the accrual of interest thereon), constitute a part of
the amount payable to the Company in respect of such call.

Upon the adoption of aresolution of forfeiture, the Board of Directors shall cause notice thereof to be given to such shareholder, which notice shall state that, in the event of
the failure to pay the entire amount so payable within a period stipulated in the notice (which period shall not be less than fourteen (14) days and which may be extended by
the Board of Directors), such shares shall be ipso facto forfeited, provided, however, that, prior to the expiration of such period, the Board of Directors may nullify such
resolution of forfeiture, but no such nullification shall stop the Board of Directors from adopting a further resolution of forfeiture in respect of the non-payment of the same
amount.

Whenever shares are forfeited as herein provided, al dividends theretofore declared in respect thereof and not actually paid shall be deemed to have been forfeited at the
sametime.

The Company, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may accept the voluntary surrender of any share.

Any share forfeited or surrendered as provided herein shall become the property of the Company, and the same, subject to the provisions of these Articles, may be sold, re-
allotted or otherwise disposed of asthe Board of Directors thinksfit.

Any sharehol der whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cease to be a shareholder in respect of the forfeited or surrendered shares, but shall, notwithstanding,
beliableto pay, and shall forthwith pay, to the Company, al calls, interest and expenses owing upon or in respect of such shares at the time of forfeiture or surrender, together
with interest thereon from the time of forfeiture or surrender until actual payment, at the rate prescribed in Article 14(e) above, and the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion,
may enforce the payment of such moneys, or any part thereof, but shall not be under any obligation to do so. In the event of such forfeiture or surrender, the Company, by
resolution of the Board of Directors, may accelerate the date(s) of payment of any or all amounts then owing by the shareholder in question (but not yet due) in respect of all
shares owned by such shareholder, solely or jointly with another, and in respect of any other matter or transaction whatsoever.

The Board of Directors may at any time, before any share so forfeited or surrendered shall have been sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed of, nullify the forfeiture or
surrender on such conditions asit thinksfit, but no such nullification shall stop the Board of Directors from re-exercising its powers of forfeiture pursuant to this Article 16.




17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

.
3

@ Except to the extent the same may be waived or subordinated in writing, the Company shall have afirst and paramount lien upon al the shares registered in the name of each
shareholder (without regard to any equitable or other claim or interest in such shares on the part of any other person), and upon the proceeds of the sale thereof, for such
shareholders debts, liabilities and engagements arising from any cause whatsoever, solely or jointly with another, to or with the Company, whether the period for the payment,
fulfillment or discharge thereof shall have actually arrived or not. Such lien shall extend to all dividends from time to time declared in respect of such share. Unless otherwise
provided, the registration by the Company of a transfer of shares shall be deemed to be a waiver on the part of the Company of the lien (if any) existing on such shares
immediately prior to such transfer.

(b) The Board of Directors may cause the Company to sell any shares subject to such lien when any such debt, liability or engagement has matured, in such manner as the Board
of Directors may think fit, but no such sale shall be made unless such debt, liability or engagement has not been satisfied within fourteen (14) days after written notice of the
intention to sell shall have been served on such shareholder, or such shareholder's executors or administrators.

(©) The net proceeds of any such sale, after payment of the costs thereof, shall be applied in or toward satisfaction of the debts, liabilities or engagements of such shareholder
(whether or not the same have matured), or any specific part of the same (as the Company may determine), and the residue (if any) shall be paid to the shareholder, such
shareholder's executors, administrators or assigns.

Sale after Forfeiture or Surrender or in Enforcement of Lien

Upon any sale of shares after forfeiture or surrender or for enforcing alien, the Board of Directors may appoint a person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares so sold and
cause the purchaser's name to be entered in the Register in respect of such shares, and the purchaser shall not be bound to see to the regularity of the proceedings, or to the application
of the purchase money, and after such purchaser's name has been entered in the Register in respect of such shares, the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any person, and
the remedy of any person aggrieved by the sale shall be in damages only and against the Company exclusively.

Redeemable Shares

The Company may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, issue redeemable shares and redeem the same upon such terms and conditions as determined by the Board of
Directors.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

Effectiveness and Registration

Any transfer of shares of the Company which have not been fully paid-up will be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may, at its sole discretion,
refuse to approve a transfer of shares as aforesaid, without the need to provide reasoning for its decision. The shares of the Company, which have been fully paid-up are freely
transferable. No transfer of shares shall be registered or, if such approval is required, approved by the Board of Directors, unless a proper instrument of transfer (in form and substance
satisfactory to the Board of Directors) has been submitted to the Company (or its transfer agent), together with the share certificate(s) (if such have been issued) and such other
evidence of title as the Board of Directors may require. Until the transferee has been registered in the Register in respect of the shares so transferred, the Company may continue to
regard the transferor as the owner thereof. The Board of Directors, may, from time to time, prescribe a reasonable fee for the registration of atransfer.

The Board of Directors may, in its discretion to the extent it deems necessary, close the Register for registrations of transfers of shares for a period determined by the Board of Directors,
and no registrations of transfers of shares shall be made by the Company for the period during which the Register is so closed.
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TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

Decedents' Shares

@

(b)

In case of a share registered in the names of two or more holders, the Company may recognize the survivor(s) as the sole owner(s) thereof unless and until the provisions of
Article 22 (b) have been effectively invoked.

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death of any person, upon producing evidence of the grant of probate or letters of administration or
declaration of succession (or such other evidence as the Board of Directors may reasonably deem sufficient that he sustains the character in respect of which he proposes to
act under this Article or of histitle), shall be registered as a shareholder in respect of such share, or may, subject to the regulations as to transfer herein contained, transfer
such share.

Receivers and Liquidators

@ The Company may recognize the receiver or liquidator of any corporate shareholder in winding-up or dissolution, or the receiver or trustee in bankruptcy of any shareholder,
as being entitled to the shares registered in the name of such shareholder.

(b) The receiver or liquidator of a corporate shareholder in winding-up or dissolution, or the receiver or trustee in bankruptcy of any shareholder, upon producing such evidence
as the Board of Directors may deem sufficient that he sustains the character in respect of which he proposes to act under this Article or of histitle, shall with the consent of
the Board of Directors (which the Board of Directors may grant or refusein its absolute discretion), be registered as a shareholder in respect of such shares, or may, subject to
the regulations as to transfer herein contained, transfer such shares.

Register of Shareholders

@ The Company shall keep a Register (as defined in this Article 24(a)) in which it may record such information as may be deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors and/or as
may be permitted by the Companies Law or these Articles. In addition, the Company shall record in the Register the following information:

@) The names and addresses of the shareholders, the number of shares held by each shareholder and the amount paid or the amount to be considered as paid on the
shares of each shareholder;

(ii) The day each person was registered in the Register as a sharehol der;

(iii) The amounts called, if any, that are due on the shares of each shareholder; and

(iv)  Any other information required by the Companies Law or these Articles to be recorded in the Register.

For the purposes of these Articles the "Register” means the principal register of shareholders of the Company, to be kept in accordance with the Companies Law, and/or, if

the Company shall have any additional or branch register(s), any such additional or branch register(s) as the case may be.

(b) The principal register shall be kept at the registered office of the Company for the time being (the "Office") and, apart from the times the Register is closed in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law or these Articles, shall be open to the inspection of any shareholder free of charge, and of any other person at such fee as the Company
shall determine for each matter, during regular business hours.

(©) The Register may be closed for such period, if any, as the Board of Directors shall determine from time to time, on the condition that the Register shall not be closed for a

period exceeding 30 days during any calendar year; and on the additional condition that the Register shall not be closed unless a notice has been published in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Law, if required.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

Annual General Meetings

An annual General Meeting of shareholders shall be held once in every calendar year at such time (to the extent required by the Companies Law, within a period of not more than fifteen
(15) months after the last preceding annual General Meeting) and at such place either in the State of Israel or abroad as may be determined by the Board of Directors. Such meetings shall
be called "Annual General Meetings'.

Special General Meetings

@ All general meetings of shareholders of the Company other than Annual General Meetings shall be called " Special General Meetings." A general meeting of shareholders of
the Company, whether it isan Annual General Meeting or a Specia General Meeting, will be referred to asa"General Meeting”.

(b) The Board of Directors may, whenever it thinks fit, convene a Special General Meeting at such time and place, in the State of Israel or abroad, as may be determined by the
Board of Directors.

(© The Board of Directors shall be obligated to convene a Special General Meeting, in accordance with the terms of the Companies Law, at such time and place, in the State of
Israel or abroad, as may be determined by the Board of Directors.

Convening of General Meetings
@ The Company shall not be required to deliver or serve notice ("Hodaa') of General Meetings or of any adjournments thereof to any shareholder.

(b) Without derogating from the provisions of Article 27(a) above, and subject to applicable law and stock exchange rules and regulations, the Company will publicize the
convening of General Meetingsin any manner reasonably determined by the Company and any such publication shall be deemed to have been duly made, given and delivered
to all shareholders on the date on which it is first made, posted, filed or published in the manner so determined by the Company in its sole discretion. The date of publication
in respect of a General Meeting as set forth in this Article, and the date of the meeting shall be counted as part of the days comprising any notice period with respect to such
General Meeting.

() If required under the Companies Law, any shareholder or shareholders, holding at |east one percent (1%) of the voting rights in the issued share capital of the Company, may,
pursuant to the Companies Law, request that the Board of Directors include a certain item on the agenda of the meeting to be held in the future. In addition, subject to the
Companies Law, the Board of Directors may include such item on the agenda only if such request has been submitted to the Company in writing at least eight (8) weeks prior
to the date of the meeting (or such shorter period as may be determined by the Board of Directors).

Record Date for General Meetings and Other Action

Notwithstanding any provision of these Articles to the contrary, in order to allow the Company to determine the shareholders entitled to vote at any General Meeting or any
adjournment thereof, or to express consent to or dissent from any corporate action in writing without a meeting, or to take or be the subject to, any other action, the Board of Directors
may determine arecord date, which shall not be more than forty (40) days (or any longer period permitted under the Companies Law), nor less than four (4) days before the date of such
meeting or other action. A determination of shareholders of record entitled to vote at a meeting shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided however, that the Board of
Directors may determine a new record date for the adjourned meeting. No persons other than holders of record of shares of the Company as of such record date shall be entitled to
participate in and vote at such General Meeting, or to exercise such other right, as the case may be.
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PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Participation

Only shareholders of record on the record date determined by the Board of Directors pursuant to Article 28 above shall be entitled to participate in and vote at a General Meeting.

Quorum
@

(b)

©

Chairman

Two or more shareholders (not in default in payment of any sum referred to in Article 37 (a) hereof), present in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, and
holding shares conferring in the aggregate twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the voting power of the Company, shall constitute a quorum at General Meetings. No
business shall be transacted at a General Meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, unless the requisite quorum is present within half an hour from the time appointed for the
General Meeting.

If within half an hour from the time appointed for the General Meeting a quorum is not present, the General Meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day in the following
week, at the same time and place or to such other later day, time and place as the Directors may determine and specify in the publication with respect to the General Meeting. It
shall not be necessary to give notice of or publicize such adjournment. No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting except business that might lawfully have
been transacted at the meeting as originally called. At such adjourned meeting, any number of participants will constitute a quorum (not in default as aforesaid) present in
person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, shall constitute a quorum; provided, however, that Special General Meeting which was convened by the Board upon
the demand of shareholders or Directorsthen in office, or directly by such shareholders or Directors, in accordance the terms of the Companies Law, shall be cancelled.

The Board of Directors may determine, at its sole discretion, the matters that may be voted upon at the meeting by proxy card, in addition to the matters listed in Section 87(a)
of the Companies Law.

The Chairman, if any, of the Board of Directors, or any other director or office holder of the Company which may be designated for this purpose by the Board of Directors, shall preside
as Chairman at every General Meeting of the Company. If thereisno such Chairman, or if the appointed Chairman is unwilling to take the chair, or if he shall have indicated in advance
that he will not be attending, or if at any meeting such Chairman is not present within thirty (30) minutes after the time fixed for holding the meeting, those present at the meeting shall
choose someone present to be Chairman of the meeting. The office of Chairman shall not, by itself, entitle the holder thereof to vote at any General Meeting nor shall it entitle such
holder to a second or casting vote (without derogating, however, from the rights of such Chairman to vote as a shareholder or proxy of a shareholder if, in fact, he or sheis aso a
shareholder or such proxy).
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Adoption of Resolutions at General Meetings

@

(b)

©

Except with respect to matters which require the approval of a special majority under the Companies Law, all resolutions of the shareholders shall be deemed adopted if
approved by the holders of a simple majority of the voting power represented at the meeting, in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, and voting thereon. It
ishereby clarified that such simple majority of the voting power represented at the meeting is also required to approve any amendment to these Articles of Association.

Every question submitted to a General Meeting shall be decided by a show of hands, but if awritten ballot is demanded by any shareholder present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote at the meeting, the same shall be decided by such ballot. A written ballot may be demanded before the proposed resolution is voted upon or immediately after
the declaration by the Chairman of the results of the vote by a show of hands. If avote by written ballot is taken after such declaration, the results of the vote by a show of
hands shall be of no effect, and the proposed resolution shall be decided by such written ballot. The demand for a written ballot may be withdrawn at any time before the
same is conducted, in which event another shareholder may then demand such written ballot. The demand for awritten ballot shall not prevent the continuance of the meeting
for the transaction of business other than the question on which the written ballot has been demanded. All votes properly tendered by proxy card or by electronic voting, as
set forth in Articles 37 (c)(iii) and (c)(v), with respect to a given resolution shall be counted for purposes of determining the outcome of any vote with respect to such
resolution taken by show of hands or by written ballot.

A declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution has been carried unanimously, or carried by a particular mgjority, or lost, and an entry to that effect in the
minutes of the meeting, shall be primafacie evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favor of or against such resolution.

Manner of the Meeting

The Board of Directors may, at its sole discretion, resolve to enable persons entitled to attend a General Meeting to do so by simultaneous attendance and participation at the principal
meeting place and a satellite meeting place or places anywhere in the world and the shareholders present in person, by proxy or by written ballot at satellite meeting places shall be
counted in the quorum for and entitled to vote at the General Meeting in question, and that meeting shall be duly constituted and its proceedings valid, provided that the chairman of the
General Meeting is satisfied that adequate facilities are availabl e throughout the General Meeting to ensure that shareholders attending at all the meeting places are able to:

@ participate in the business for which the meeting has been convened;

(b) hear all persons who speak (whether by the use of microphones, loudspeakers audio-visual communications equipment or otherwise) in the principal meeting place and any
satellite meeting place(s); and

(0 be heard by all other persons so present in the same way.

Power to Adjourn

(@ The Chairman of a General Meeting at which aquorum is present may, with the consent of the holders of amajority of the voting power represented in person or by proxy and
voting on the question of adjournment (and shall if so directed by the meeting), adjourn the meeting, or the discussion or resolution in any item on the agenda for the meeting,
from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting except business which might lawfully have been transacted at the
meeting asoriginaly called.

(b) It shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment, however, if the meeting is adjourned for thirty (30) days or more, the Company shall publicize the adjournment

and the matters to be included on the agenda of the adjourned General Meeting in the same manner in which it announced the convening of the original General Meeting.
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Voting Power

Subject to the provisions of Article 37 (a) and subject to the rights of holders of shares with special rights as to voting, every shareholder shall have one vote for each share held by
such shareholder of record, on every resolution, without regard to whether the vote thereon is conducted by a show of hands, by written ballot or by any other means.

Voting Rights

@ No shareholder shall be entitled to vote at any General Meeting (or be counted as a part of the quorum thereat), unless all calls and other sums then payable by such
shareholder in respect of such shareholder's shares in the Company have been paid.

(b) A company or other corporate body being a shareholder of the Company may, subject to applicable law, authorize any person to be its representative at any General Meeting
of the Company or execute or deliver a proxy on its behalf. Any person so authorized shall be entitled to exercise on behalf of such shareholder all the power that the latter

could have exercised if it were an individual shareholder. Upon the request of the Chairman of the meeting, written evidence of such authorization (in form acceptable to the
Chairman) shall be delivered to the Chairman.

(©) Any shareholder entitled to vote may vote in one of the following manners:
@) personally;
(ii) by proxy (who need not be a shareholder of the Company);
(iii) by proxy card, provided it is completed and returned to the Company in accordance with its terms;
(iv) if the shareholder is a company or other corporate body, by arepresentative authorized pursuant to Article 37 (b); or

(v) by electronic voting; shareholders who hold shares through members of the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange ("TASE"), may vote electronically via the electronic voting
system of the Israel Securities Authority, upontermsand instructions received from the TASE member through which the sharehol der holds his or her shares.

(d) If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, in person, by proxy, by proxy card or by electronic voting, shall
be accepted to the exclusion of the vote(s) of the other joint holder(s); and for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names appear in the
Register.
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Proxies; Instrument of Appointment

@

(b)

(©

(d)

©

Theinstrument appointing aproxy shall bein writing and shall be substantially in the following form:

"l (Name of Shareholder) of (Address of Shareholder) being a shareholder of Compugen Ltd. hereby appoint

(Name of Proxy) of (Address of Proxy) as my proxy to participate and vote for me and on my behalf at the General Meeting of the Company to be
held on the day of ,20__and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

Signed this day of ,20__.

(Signature of Appointer)"

or inany usual or common form or in such other form as may be approved by the Board of Directors, including aform which provides for a continuing proxy until the
occurrence of such date or event as is specified in the proxy. It shall be duly signed by the appointer or his duly authorized attorney, which signature shall be
confirmed by an advocate or notary or bank or in any other manner acceptable to the Chairman of the meeting or, if such appointer is a company or other corporate
body, under its common seal or stamp or the hand of its duly authorized agent(s) or attorney(s).

The instrument appointing a proxy (and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which such instrument has been signed) shall either be delivered to
the Company (at its Office, or at its principal place of business or at the offices of its registrar and/or transfer agent or at such place as the Board of Directors may
specify) not less than twenty four (24) hours before the time fixed for the meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or presented to the
Chairman at such meeting.

Proxy cards shall bein such form, and substance, as shall be prescribed by the Board of Directors. Proxy cards shall be completed and delivered to the Company (at its Office,
or at its principal place of business or at the offices of itsregistrar and/or transfer agent or at such place as the Board of Directors may specify) in accordance with itsterms.

A vote cast pursuant to an instrument appointing a proxy or by proxy card, or pursuant to electronic voting, shall be valid notwithstanding the death, liquidation or winding-
up of the appointing or voting shareholder (or of his attorney-in-fact, if any, who signed such instrument), or the revocation of the appointment or vote, or the transfer of the
share in respect of which the vote is cast, provided no written intimation of such death, liquidation, winding-up, revocation or transfer shall have been received by the
Company or by the Chairman of the meeting before such voteis cast and provided, further, that the appointing or voting shareholder, if present in person at said meeting, may
revoke the appointment or the electronic voting by means of awritten or verbal notification to the Chairman, or otherwise.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed revoked (i) upon receipt by the Company or the Chairman of the meeting, subsequent to receipt by the Company of such
instrument, of written notice signed by the person signing such instrument or by the shareholder appointing such proxy canceling the appointment thereunder (or the
authority pursuant to which such instrument was signed) or of an instrument appointing a different proxy (and such other documents, if any, required under this Article 38 (e)
for such new appointment), provided such notice of cancellation or instrument appointing a different proxy were so received at the place and within the time for delivery of the
instrument revoked thereby as referred to in Article 38 (€) hereof, or (ii) if the appointing shareholder is present in person at the meeting for which such instrument of proxy
was delivered, upon receipt by the Chairman of such meeting of written notice from such shareholder of the revocation of such appointment, or if and when such shareholder
votes at such meeting. A vote cast in accordance with an instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the revocation or purported cancellation of the
appointment, or the presence in person of the appointing shareholder at a meeting for which it was rendered, unless such instrument of appointment was deemed revoked in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Article 38 (€) at or prior to the time such vote was cast.

Without derogating from any of the above, if a shareholder voted in more than one way, his latest vote shall be counted; for this purpose: (a) the date on the proxy card shall
be deemed the voting date; and (b) a vote cast by the shareholder himself or by his proxy shall be deemed later to his vote by proxy card or by electronic voting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Powers of Board of Directors

@

(b)

©

Generd. The Board of Directors shall determine the Company's policies, oversee the activities of the chief executive officer (the "Chief Executive Officer"), and take such
other actions as are described in Section 92 of the Companies Law. The Board of Directors shall be empowered to exercise any power of the Company not conferred by the
Companies Law or by these Articles on any other organ of the Company. The authority conferred on the Board of Directors by this Article 39 shall be subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law and these Articles.

Borrowing Power. The Board of Directors may from time to time, at its discretion, cause the Company to borrow or secure the payment of any sum or sums of money for the
purposes of the Company, and may secure or provide for the repayment of such sum or sums in such manner, at such times and upon such terms and conditions as it deems
fit, and, in particular, by the issuance of bonds, perpetua or redeemable debentures, debenture stock, or any mortgages, charges, or other securities on the undertaking or the
whole or any part of the property of the Company, both present and future, including its uncalled or called but unpaid capital for the time being.

Reserves. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, set aside any amount(s) out of the profits of the Company as a reserve or reserves for any purpose(s) which the
Board of Directors, in its absolute discretion, shall deem fit, including without limitation, capitalization and distribution of bonus shares, and may invest any sum so set aside
in any manner and from time to time deal with and vary such investments and dispose of al or any part thereof, and employ any such reserve or any part thereof in the
business of the Company without being bound to keep the same separate from other assets of the Company, and may subdivide or re-designate any reserve or cancel the
same or apply the funds therein for another purpose, al asthe Board of Directors may deem fit from time to time.

Exercise of Powers of Directors

@

(b)

(©

A meeting of the Board of Directors at which aquorum is present, whether in person or by any other means by which the Directors may hear each other simultaneously, shall
be competent to exercise all the authorities, powers and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Board of Directors.

A resolution proposed at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed adopted if approved by a majority of the Directors present and entitled to vote when such
resolution is put to avote and voting thereon.

A resolution in writing signed by all of the Directors or members of a Committee of the Board of Directors then in office and lawfully entitled to vote thereon (as conclusively
determined by the Chairman of the Board of Directors) or to which all of such Directors have agreed in writing or given their oral consent by telephone (provided that in such
event, a written summary thereof has been approved and signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company) shall be deemed to have been unanimously
adopted by ameeting of the Board of Directors or any Committee thereof duly convened and held.
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Audit Committee

@

(b)

The Board of Directors shall appoint an Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee shall, to the extent required, be in compliance with the Companies Law and
with the rules of any stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are traded.

The duties of the Audit Committee shall be as provided by applicable law and/or applicable rules of any stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are traded and
shall include:

@) to detect any deficienciesin the business management of the Company, by among other things consulting with the Company’sinternal auditor and independent
auditors, and to propose to the Board of Directors ways of correcting these deficiencies; and

(ii) to decide whether to approve actions and transactions requiring approval of the Audit Committee pursuant to the Companies Law.

Delegation of Powers

@

(b)

©

Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors may delegate any or al of its powers to committees, each consisting of two or more persons (all of whose members must
be Directors), and it may from time to time revoke such delegation or alter the composition of any such committee. Any committee so formed (in these Articles referred to asa
"Committee of the Board of Directors"), shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations imposed on it by the Board of Directors. The meetings
and proceedings of any such Committee of the Board of Directors shall, mutatis mutandis, be governed by the provisions herein contained for regulating the meetings of the
Board of Directors, so far as not superseded by any regulations adopted by the Board of Directors under this Article. Unless otherwise expressly provided by the Board of
Directorsin delegating powers to a Committee of the Board of Directors, such Committee shall not be empowered to further delegate such powers.

Without derogating from the provisions of Article 55 below, the Board of Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, from time to time appoint a Secretary
to the Company, as well as officers, agents, employees and independent contractors, as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate, and may terminate the service of any
such person. The Board of Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, determine the powers and duties, as well as the terms and conditions of
employment, of all such persons, and may require security in such cases and in such amounts as it deems appropriate.

The Board of Directors may from time to time, by power of attorney or otherwise, appoint any person, company, firm or body of persons to be the attorney or attorneys of the
Company at law or in fact for such purpose(s) and with such powers, authorities and discretions, and for such period and subject to such conditions, as it deems fit, and any
such power of attorney or other appointment may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with any such attorney as the Board of
Directors may deem fit, and may also authorize any such attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions vested in them.

Number of Directors

The number of Directors shall consist of no less than five (5) Directors and no more than fourteen (14) Directors, unless otherwise resolved by the Annual General Meeting.
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Election, Appointment and Removal of Directors

@

(b)

(©

(d)

(e

()

If at any time, the Company shall be required to appoint independent or external directors as may be required by law (“External Directors’) such directors shall serve on the
Board according to the number required by law. Externa Directors will be appointed and removed pursuant to and shall be governed by the relevant provisions of the law
which appliesto External Directors.

The Directors (other than External Directors) shall be elected and dismissed by a simple majority of the voting power present and voting at an Annual General Meeting.
Subject to the maximum number of Directors provided for in Article 43 above, between Annual General Meetings, the Board of Directors shall be empowered to appoint
Directors by amajority vote of the Directors then in office.

Directors elected at an Annual General Meeting, except External Directors, if applicable, shal hold office until the end of the Annual General Meeting, immediately following
the Annual General Meeting at which they were elected and until their successors have been duly elected or until any such Directors' term of office terminates as provided in
the Companies Law or due to any of the circumstances set forth in Article 47 below. Directors appointed by the Board pursuant to Article 44(a) above, shall hold office until
the end of the immediately following Annual General Meeting or until such Directors' term of office terminates as provided in the Companies Law or due to any of the
circumstances set forth in Article 47 below.

Subject to applicable law, a Director who has ceased to hold office shall be eligible for re-election or re-appointment.

The term of office of a Director will begin as of the date of the Annual General Meeting at which he was elected or as of the date of the meeting of the Board of Directors at
which he was appointed (if appointed by the Board pursuant to Article 44(b) above) or at such later date as is determined in the resolution electing or appointing him or
pursuant thereto.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article 44, the shareholders may, at any time, by a resolution adopted by a simple majority of the voting power present and
voting at a Special General Meeting, discharge from office any Director, provided such Director is given a reasonable opportunity to state his or her case before the
shareholders at the General Meeting and/or appoint a Director (provided that with respect to External Directors, the requirements of the Companies Law are satisfied).

Qualification of Directors

No person shall be disqualified to serve as a Director by reason of his not holding shares in the Company or, subject to applicable law, by reason of his having served as a Director in

the past.

Continuing Directorsin the Event of Vacancies

In the event of one or more vacancies in the Board of Directors, the continuing Directors may continue to act in every matter, and may fill any such vacancy in accordance with Article
44(b); provided, however, that if they number less than amajority of the minimum number provided for pursuant to Article 43 hereof or, to the extent applicable, if the number of External
Directors falls below the minimum number required, they may only act in an emergency, and must call a General Meeting of the Company for the purpose of electing Directors to fill any
or al vacancies, so that at least a mgjority of the minimum number of Directors provided for pursuant to Article 43 hereof, or, to the extent applicable, the minimum number of External
Directors, as the case may be, arein office asaresult of said meeting.
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Vacation of Office

@ The office of a Director shall be vacated by the Director's written resignation. Such resignation shall become effective on the date fixed therein, or upon the delivery thereof to
the Company, whichever islater.

(b) The Company shall be entitled, at any time, to discharge from office any Director subject to and in accordance with Article 44(f).

(0 The office of a Director shall be vacated, ipso facto, upon the occurrence of any of the following: (i) his death, or, if the Director isalegal entity, it has adopted a resolution of

voluntary liquidation or winding-up, or aliquidation order has been issued with respect thereto; (ii) should he be declared to be legally incompetent; (iii) should he be declared
bankrupt; or (iv) as otherwise provided in the Companies Law.

Remuneration of Directors

No Director shall be paid any remuneration by the Company for such Director's services as a Director or for any other services provided to the Company, unless such remuneration has
been approved pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Law.

Conflict of Interests

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may enter into any contract or otherwise transact any business with any director in which contract or business such
director has a personal interest, directly or indirectly; and may enter into any contract or otherwise transact any business with any third party in which contract or business a
director has a personal interest, directly or indirectly.

Alternate Director

Subject to the Companies Law, a Director may from time to time appoint an alternate for himself or herself (an “ Alternate Director”), dismiss such Alternate Director and appoint another
instead of any Alternate Director whose office has been vacated for any reason, either for a particular meeting or permanently, subject to there being no objection to such appointment

by any of the then serving directors. An Alternate Director shall have all the rights and obligations of the appointing Director, excluding the right to appoint an Alternate Director.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meetings
@ The Board of Directors shall convene meetings as required to fulfill the needs of the Company, but in any event shall convene at least one meeting in every three month

period. The Board of Directors may meet and adjourn its meetings and otherwise regulate such meetings and proceedings as the Directors deem fit. Meetings of the Board of
Directors may be held telephonically or by any other means of communication provided that each Director participating in such meeting can hear and be heard by all of the
other Directors participating in such meeting.

(b) The Chairman of the Board of Directors may convene ameeting of the Board of Directors, provided that anotice is delivered areasonable time prior to the applicable meeting.
Notwithstanding, the Board may convene without prior notice in urgent cases only, if the majority of the Directors has approved to do so. Subject to the terms of the
Companies Law and without derogating from the preceding, the failure to give notice to a Director in the manner required herein may be waived. The notice of meeting shall
include the agenda of the meeting. Notice of the meetings of the Board of Directors may be given orally, by telephone, by email or be sent to each Director in any other
reasonable manner at the last physical or email address or telephone or facsimile number that the Director provided to the Company.
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(©) Upon the receipt of a written request under any of the following circumstances, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall, and in the absence of a Chairman, any Director
receiving such written request shall, convene a meeting of the Board of Directors, but not less than twenty-four (24) hours' notice shall be given of any meeting, unless such
noticeiswaived:

@) upon the receipt of awritten request from any two Directors, or in the event that there are five or less Directors serving in office at the time, upon the written request of
any Director;

(i) upon the receipt of awritten request from any Director requesting that a meeting be convened and stating that he or she has learned of an alleged violation of the law
or of proper business procedure by the Company.

(iii) upon the receipt of any written request from the Chief Executive Officer of the Company requesting an action of the Board of Directors; or

(iv) upon the receipt of a written notice from the independent auditor(s) of the Company regarding material flaws in the oversight of the Company's internal accounting
methods.

Quorum

Until otherwise unanimously decided by the Board of Directors, a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be constituted by the presence, in person, or by telephone
conference, of a majority of the Directors then in office who are lawfully entitled to participate and vote in the meeting (as conclusively determined by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors).

Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall from time to time elect one of its members to be the Chairman of the Board of Directors, remove such Chairman from office and appoint another in its place.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall preside at every meeting of the Board of Directors, but if there is no such Chairman, or if the appointed Chairman is unwilling to take the
chair, or if he shall have indicated in advance that he will not be attending, or if at any meeting he is not present within fifteen (15) minutes of the time scheduled for the meeting, the
Directors present shall choose one of their number to be the chairman of such meeting. The office of Chairman shall not entitle such Director to a second or casting vote.

Validity of Acts Despite Defects

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, all acts done bonafide at any meeting of the Board of Directors, or of a Committee of the Board of Directors, or by any person(s) acting
as Director(s), shall, notwithstanding that it may afterwards be discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of the participants in such meetings or any of them or any
person(s) acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be asvalid asif there were no such defect or disqualification.

MINUTES
Minutes
@ Minutes of each General Meeting and of each meeting of the Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) shall be recorded and duly entered in books provided for that
purpose. Such minutes shall, in all events, set forth the names of the persons present at the meeting and all resolutions adopted thereat.
(b) Any minutes as aforesaid, if purporting to be signed by the chairman of the meeting or by the chairman of the next succeeding meeting, shall constitute prima facie evidence of

the matters recorded therein.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chief Executive Officer

@

(b)

(d)

The Board of Directors shall from time to time appoint one or more persons, whether or not Directors, as Chief Executive Officers(s) of the Company and may confer upon such
person(s), and from time to time modify or revoke, such title(s) (including General Manager, Managing Director, Director General or any similar or dissimilar title). The
appointment of the Chief Executive Officer(s) may be either for afixed term or without any limitation of time. The Board of Directors may from time to time remove or dismiss
the Chief Executive Officer(s) from office and appoint another or othersin the Chief Executive Officer(s)'s place.

The Chief Executive Officer(s) shall manage the business of the Company, subject to the policies established by the Board of Directors, such limitations and restrictions as are
set forth in these Articles or as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe, and the provisions of the Companies Law.

The Board of Directors may from time to time determine the Chief Executive Officer(s) salary and other terms and conditions of the Chief Executive Officer's employment,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Law.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and provided the Board of Directors has authorized him or her to do so, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company may
appoint additional Officer Holders (as such term is defined in the Companies Law) of the Company (other than Directors and Chief Executive Officers), and determine the
duties and powers of such Office Holders. The terms and conditions of such Office Holders' employment shall be approved as required by the Companies Law. The Chief
Executive Officer shall notify the Board of Directors of each such appointment at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following such appointment.

EXEMPTION, INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

Indemnity and Insurance

Insurance.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may enter into contracts to insure the liabilities of its Office Holders for any liabilities or expenses incurred by or imposed
upon them arising from or as aresult of any act (or omission) carried out by them as Office Holders of the Company, to the fullest extent permitted by law, including in respect of any
liability imposed on any Office Holder with respect to any of the following:

@
(b)

(0)
(d)

A breach of the duty of care owed to the Company or to any other person;

A breach of the duty of loyalty owed to the Company, provided that, the Office Holder acted in good faith and had reasonable grounds to assume that such act would not
prejudice the interests of the Company;

Monetary liabilities or obligationsimposed on him in favor of another person.
A payment which the Office Holder is obligated to make to an injured party as set forth in Section 52(54)(a)(1)(a) of the Israel Securities Law, 5728-1968 (the "Securities Law")
and expenses that the Office Holder incurred in connection with a proceeding under Chapters H'3, H'4 or I'1 of the Securities Law, including reasonable litigation expenses,

including attorney's fees, or in connection with Article D of Chapter Four of Part Nine of the Companies Law.

Expenses incurred by the Office Holder in connection with a proceeding under Chapter G'1, of the Israel Restrictive Trade Practices Law, 5748-1988 (the "Restrictive Trade
Law"), including reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney's fees.
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Indemnification.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may indemnify any of its Office Holders for al liabilities and expenses incurred by them arising from or as aresult of any
act (or omission) carried out by them as Office Holders of the Company and which is indemnifiable pursuant to applicable law, to the fullest extent permitted by law, including, as
follows:

@ retrospectively; and
(b) undertake in advance to indemnify the Office Holders to the fullest extent permitted by law, including, as follows:
(i) For any monetary liabilities or obligations imposed on the Office Holder in favor of another person pursuant to a court judgment, including a compromise judgment or

an arbitrator's decision approved by acourt;;

(ii) For any payments which the Office Holder is obligated to make to an injured party as set forth in Section 52(54)(a)(1)(a) of the Securities Law and expenses the Office
Holder incurred in connection with a proceeding under Chapters H'3, H'4 or I'1 of the Securities Law, including reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney's
fees, or in connection with Article D of Chapter Four of Part Nine of the Companies Law;

(iii) For reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the Office Holder in consequence of an investigation or proceeding instituted against the
Office Holder by an authority that is authorized to conduct such investigation or proceeding, and which was concluded without filing of an indictment against the
Office Holder and without imposing on the Office Holder afinancial obligation in lieu of criminal proceedings, or which was concluded without filing of an indictment
against the Office Holder but with imposing on such Office Holder a financial obligation in lieu of criminal proceedings in respect of an offense that does not require
proof of criminal intent or in connection with afinancial sanction;

For the purposes hereof: (i) “a proceeding that concluded without filing an indictment in a matter in respect of which an investigation was conducted”; and (ii)
“financial obligationinlieu of acriminal proceeding”, shall have the meanings specified in Section 260(a)(1A) of the Companies Law;

(iv) For reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the Office Holder or which the Office Holder is ordered to pay by a court, in a proceeding
filed against the Office Holder by the Company or on its behalf or by another person, or in acriminal action of which the Office Holder is acquitted, or in a criminal
action in which the Office Holder is convicted of an offense that does not require proof of criminal intent.

v) For expenses incurred by the Office Holder in connection with a proceeding under Chapter G'1, of the Restrictive Trade Law, including reasonable litigation expenses,
including attorney's fees.

(vi) For any other ligbility, obligation or expense indemnifiable or which may from time to time be indemnifiable by law.

provided that: (x) an undertaking in advance to indemnify an Office Holder with respect to the matters specified in Article 57.2(b)(i) above is limited to types of occurrences,
which in the opinion of the Board of Directors, in light of the Company's actual activities at the time of the undertaking, are foreseeable and to an amount or to criteria the
Board of Directors has determined to be reasonable in the circumstances; and (y) in the undertaking in advance to indemnify an Office Holder, the types of occurrences that
the Board of Directors believes to be foreseeable in light of the Company's actual activities at the time the undertaking to indemnify was given are mentioned, as is the amount
or criteriathat the Board of Directors determined to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Exemption of Office Holders.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may, to the fullest extent permitted by law, exempt and release its Office Holders, including in advance, from and against
all or part of such Office Holders' liability for monetary or other damages due to, or arising or resulting from, abreach of their duty of care to the Company. The Directors of the Company
arereleased and exempt from any and all liability as aforesaid to the fullest extent permitted by law with respect to any such breach, which has been or may be committed.

The provisions of this Article 57 are not intended, and shall not be interpreted so as to restrict the Company, in any manner, in respect of the procurement of insurance and/or
indemnification and/or exculpation, in favor of any person who is not an Office Holder, including, without limitation, any employee, agent, consultant or contractor of the Company who
isnot an Office Holder.

The Company may, as aforesaid, indemnify, insure and exempt from liability any Office Holder to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. Accordingly: (i) any amendment to the
Companies Law, the Securities Law, the Restrictive Trade Law or any other applicable law expanding the ability of the Company to indemnify, insure or exempt from liability any Office
Holder, or expanding the right of any Office Holder to be indemnified, insured or exempted from liability, beyond or in addition to the provisions of these Articles, shall, to the fullest
extent possible, automatically and immediately apply to the Office Holders of the Company and be deemed as included in these Articles to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law;
and (ii) any amendment to the Companies Law, the Securities Law, the Restrictive Trade Law or any other applicable law adversely affecting the ability of the Company to indemnify,
insure or exempt from liability any Office Holder or adversely affecting the right of any Office Holder to be indemnified, insured or exempted from liability as provided for in these Articles
shall have no effect post factum and shall not affect the Company's obligations or ability to indemnify, insure or exempt from liability an Office Holder for any act (or omission) carried
out prior to such amendment, unless otherwise provided by applicable law.

RIGHTS OF SIGNATURE and RUBBER STAMP

Rights of Signature and Rubber Stamp

[€)] The Board of Directors shall be entitled to authorize any person or persons (who need not be Directors) to act and sign on behalf of the Company and to further delegate such
signatory powers, and the acts and signatures of such person(s) on behalf of the Company, shall bind the Company insofar as such person(s) acted and signed within the
scope of such person's authority.

(b) The Company shall have at least one official rubber stamp.
DIVIDENDS
Declaration of Dividends
@ Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors may from time to time declare, and cause the Company to pay, such dividends as may appear to the Board of Directors

to be justified by the profits of the Company. Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors shall determine the time for payment of such dividends and the record
date for determining the shareholders entitled thereto.

(b) No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of the profits of the Company.
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Amount Payable by Way of Dividends

@ Subject to the provisions of these Articles and subject to any rights or conditions attached at that time to any share in the capital of the Company granting preferential, special
or deferred rights or not granting any rights with respect to dividends, the profits of the Company which shall be declared as dividends shall be distributed according to the
proportion of the nominal value paid up or credited as paid up on account of the shares held at the date so appointed by the Company and in respect of which such dividend
is being paid, without regard to the premium paid in excess of the nominal value, if any. No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for
purposes of this Article as paid on ashare.

(b) No dividend shall carry interest against the Company.

Payment in Specie

@ A dividend may be paid, wholly or partly, by the distribution of specific assets of the Company or by the distribution of specific assets, paid-up shares, debentures or
debenture stock of any other company, or in any one or more such ways.

(b) Upon the determination of the Board of Directors, the Company (i) may cause any monies, investments, or other assets forming part of the undivided profits of the Company,
standing to the credit of a reserve fund, or to the credit of a reserve fund for the redemption of capital, or in the hands of the Company and available for dividends, or
representing premiums received on the issuance of shares and standing to the credit of the share premium account, to be capitalized and distributed among such of the
shareholders as would be entitled to receive the same if distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportion, on the footing that they become entitled thereto as capital,
or may cause any part of such capitalized fund to be applied on behalf of such shareholdersin paying up in full, either at par or at such premium as the resolution may provide,
any unissued shares or debentures or debenture stock of the Company which shall be distributed accordingly or in payment, in full or in part, of the uncalled liability on all
issued shares or debentures or debenture stock if such liability exists, on a pro rata basis; and (ii) may cause such distribution or payment to be accepted by such
shareholdersin full satisfaction of their interest in the said capitalized sum.

Implementation of Powers under Articles 60 and 61

For the purpose of giving full effect to any resolution under Articles 60 or 61, the Board of Directors may settle any difficulty which may arise in regard to the distribution as it thinks
expedient, and, in particular, may issue fractional certificates or make payment in lieu of fractional sharesin an amount determined by the Board of Directors, and may determine the value
for distribution of any specific assets, and may determine that cash payments shall be made to any shareholders upon the footing of the value so fixed, or that fractions of less value
than the nominal value of one share may be disregarded in order to adjust the rights of all parties, and may vest any such cash, shares, debentures, debenture stock or specific assetsin
trustees upon such trusts for the persons entitled to the dividend or capitalized fund as may seem expedient to the Board of Directors.

Deductions from Dividends

The Board of Directors may deduct from any dividend or other moneys payable to any shareholder in respect of a share any and all sums of money then payable by such shareholder to
the Company on account of calls or otherwise in respect of shares of the Company and/or on account of any other matter of transaction whatsoever.
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Retention of Dividends

@ The Board of Directors may retain any dividend or other moneys payable or property distributable in respect of a share on which the Company has a lien, and may apply the
samein or toward satisfaction of the debts, liabilities, or engagementsin respect of which the lien exists.

(b) The Board of Directors may retain any dividend or other moneys payable or property distributable in respect of ashare in respect of which any person is, under these Articles,
entitled to become a shareholder, or which any person is, under these Articles, entitled to transfer, until such person shall become a shareholder in respect of such share or
shall transfer the same.

Unclaimed Dividends

All unclaimed dividends or other moneys payable in respect of a share may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board of Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed.
The payment by the Directors of any unclaimed dividend or such other moneys into a separate account shall not constitute the Company as a trustee in respect thereof, and any
dividend unclaimed after a period of three (3) years from the date of declaration of such dividend, and any such other moneys unclaimed after a period of three (3) years from the date the
same were payable, shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company; provided however, that the Board of Directors may, at its sole discretion, cause the Company to pay any such
dividend or such other moneys, or any part thereof, to a person who would have been entitled thereto had the same not reverted to the Company.

Mechanics of Payment

Any dividend or other moneys payable in cash in respect of a share may be paid by check sent through the post to, or left at, the registered address of the person entitled thereto or by
transfer to abank account specified by such person (or, if two or more persons are registered as joint holders of such share or are entitled jointly thereto in consequence of the death or
bankruptcy of the holder or otherwise, to any one of such persons or to his bank account), or to such person and at such address as the person entitled thereto may direct in writing.
Every such check shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent, or to such person as the person entitled thereto as aforesaid may direct, and payment of the check
by the banker upon whom it is drawn shall be a good discharge to the Company. Every such check shall be sent at the risk of the person entitled to the money represented thereby.

Receipt from a Joint Holder

If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, or are entitled jointly thereto in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder or otherwise, any one of them
may give effectual receipts for any dividend or other moneys payable or property distributable in respect of such share.

ACCOUNTS; AUDITORS

Books of Account

The Board of Directors shall cause accurate books of account to be kept in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law and of any other applicable law. Such books of
account shall be kept at the Office of the Company, or at such other place or places as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate, and they shall always be open to inspection by all
Directors. No shareholder, not being a Director, shall have any right to inspect any account or book or other similar document of the Company, except as conferred by law or authorized
by the Board of Directors or by aresolution of a General Meeting of the Company.
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Fiscal Year

The Company's fiscal year shall commence on January 1st and end on the following December 31st.

Audit

The Company shall prepare financial statementsin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied and as required by the Companies Law and any other
applicablelaw. The Company’sannual financial statements shall be audited for correctness by the Company's auditor and shall be approved and signed by the Board of Directors.

Auditors

@

The shareholders of the Company shall appoint an independent auditor(s) of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. Such appointment shall bein force until the end of
the fiscal year for which the appointment is made, or for alonger period if so resolved at the Annual General Meeting, but in no event for a period of more than three fiscal
years. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the shareholders of the Company may remove the independent auditor(s) at any time.

(b) The appointment, authorities, rights and duties of the independent auditor(s) of the Company shall be regulated by applicable law.
(0 The Audit Committee shall have the authority to fix, in its discretion, the remuneration of the independent auditor(s) and shall bring such to the Board for approval, and the
Company shall report to the shareholders on such remuneration at the Annual General Meeting.
DONATIONS
Donations

Subject to applicable law, the Company shall be entitled to donate reasonable amounts to a cause, which the Board of Directors deems worthy, even if such donation is not motivated by
business considerations.

Notices

@

NOTICES

Without derogating from Article 27 above or Article 73(j) below, any notice or document may be served by the Company upon any shareholder personally or by sending it by
mail addressed to such shareholder at such shareholder's address as described in the Register or such other address as such shareholder may have designated in writing for
the receipt of notices and documents. Any notice or document may be served by any shareholder upon the Company by tendering the same in person to the Secretary or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company at the Office or by sending it by prepaid registered mail (airmail if posted outside Israel) to the Company at its Office. Any such notice
or document shall be deemed to have been served two (2) business days after it has been posted (five (5) business daysif sent to a place not located on the same continent as
the place from where it was posted), or when actually received by the addressee if sooner than two (2) days or five (5) days, as the case may be, after it has been posted, or
when actually tendered in person, to such shareholder (or to the Secretary or the Chief Executive Officer); provided however, that notice may be sent by e-mail, facsimile or
other electronic means and confirmed by registered mail as aforesaid, and such notice shall be deemed to have been given twenty-four (24) hours after such e-mail, facsimile or
other electronic communication has been sent or when actually received by such shareholder (or by the Company), whichever is earlier. If anoticeis, in fact, received by the
addressee, it shall be deemed to have been duly served, when received, notwithstanding that it was defectively addressed or failed, in some respect, to comply with the
provisions of thisArticle 73 (a).
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All notices to be given to the shareholders shall, with respect to any share to which persons are jointly entitled, be given to whichever of such persons is named first in the
Register, and any notice so given shall be sufficient notice to the holders of such share.

If requested by the Company, each shareholder shall provide the Company with the shareholder's full street and mailing address, as well, if available, with facsimile number
and email address. Without derogating from Article 27 above, any shareholder whose address is not described in the Register, and who shall not have designated in writing an
address for the receipt of notices, shall not be entitled to receive any notice from the Company.

The Company may declare that any document(s) will be delivered or be available for review at the Office or any other place designated by the Board of Directors.

Whenever it is required to give prior notice or publicize a specified number of days in advance or where a notice or publication is valid for a specified period, the day of the
publication or the day of service of the notice shall be included in such count or period.

Service of notice to arelative of ashareholder living at the same address with him will be deemed service to such shareholder.

Subject to applicable law, any shareholder, Director or other person entitled to receive notice in accordance with these Articles or law may waive notice, in advance or
retroactively, in a particular case or type of case or generally, and if so, notice will be deemed as having been duly served, and all proceedings or actions for which the notice
was required will be deemed valid.

Any person entitled to a share by operation of law or by transfer, transmission or otherwise will be bound by any notice served or by any publication made pursuant to these
Articleswith respect to such share prior to his being registered in the Register as owner of the shares.

It shall not be necessary to set forth in detail in any publication as provided for in Article 27(b) above, the full text of any proposed resolutions and a general description of the
nature of the matters on the agenda will suffice. The Company shall be entitled, however, but shall be under no obligation to do so, to specify in any publication in respect of a
meeting, a place and atime where and when the full text of proposed resolution(s) may be reviewed.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Company may give notice to any shareholder by posting a notice on the Company's website, filing an
appropriate periodic report with the SEC, by publishing on one or more international wire services or in one or more newspapers or by publicizing in any other manner
reasonably determined by the Company and the date of such posting, filing or other publication shall be deemed the date on which such notice has been served upon such
shareholder. Where notice is given by more than one method, it will be deemed served on the earliest of such dates.

The accidental omission to give notice to any shareholder pursuant to any applicable law or these Articles or the non-receipt of any such notice by any shareholder entitled to
receive notice shall not invalidate any action, transaction, resolution or proceedings taken by the Company and/or at or by any General Meeting.
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WINDING UP

Winding Up

Subject to the rights of the holders of shares with limited or preferred rights as to liquidation, if the Company is wound up on liquidation or dissolution, then, subject to applicable law,
all the assets of the Company available for distribution among the shareholders shall be distributed to them in proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on account of the
nominal value of the shares held by them respectively and in respect of which such distribution is being made, without regard to any premium paid in excess of the nominal value, if any.




FORM OF PROXY CARD
COMPUGENLTD.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
SEPTEMBER 19, 2019

THISPROXY ISSOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The shareholder(s) hereby appoints Anat Cohen-Dayag, Ari Krashin and Donna Gershowitz, or any one of them, as proxies, each with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorizes
them to represent and to vote as designated on the reverse side of this Proxy, al of the Ordinary Shares of Compugen Ltd. that the shareholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders to be held at 3:00 p.m., on September 19, 2019, at the offices of the Company, 26 Harokmim Street, Bldg D, Holon, Israel and any adjournment or postponement thereof
(the "Meeting").

THISPROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED ASDIRECTED BY THE SHAREHOLDER(S). IF NO SUCH DIRECTIONS ARE MADE, THE FORM OF PROXY WILL BE
VOTED "FOR" ALL PROPOSALS AND IN THE DISCRETION OF THE PROXIES WITH RESPECT TO ALL OTHER MATTERS WHICH MAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE
MEETING AND ANY AND ALL ADJOURNMENTS THEREOF.

(Continued and to be signed on thereverseside)




ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
COMPUGEN LTD.
SEPTEMBER 19, 2019

Please date, sign and mail your proxy card in the envelope provided as soon as possible

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSRECOMMENDSA VOTE “FOR” ALL PROPOSALS
PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVEL OPE.
PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN BLUE OR BLACK INK ASSHOWN HERE [X]

1. Toelect seven directorsto serve as members of the Board of Directors of the Company FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
O O O
Paul Sekhri O O O
Jean-Pierre Bizzari O O O
Anat Cohen-Dayag O O O
Gilead Halevy O O O
Eran Perry O O O
Kinneret Livnat Savitzky O O O
Sanford (Sandy) Zweifach O O O
2. To increase the Company's authorized share capital and to amend and restate the Company’s Memorandum and Articles to O O O
reflect the same
3. Toapprove an amendment to the Company’s Compensation Policy O O O
Doyou havea" personal interest” in Item 3?
Under the Companies Law, in general, a person is deemed to have a personal interest if any member of his or her immediate
family, or the immediate family of its spouse, has a personal interest in the adoption of the proposal; or if a company, other than
Compugen, that is affiliated with such person, has a personal interest in the adoption of the proposal. YES NO
Please note - you do not have a personal interest in the adoption of this proposal just because you own our shares.
PLEASE NOTE THAT IT ISUNLIKELY THAT YOU HAVE A PERSONAL INTEREST IN THISITEM 3.
Areyou a" controlling shareholder" ?
Under the Companies Law, in general, a person will be deemed to be a "controlling shareholder" if that person has the power to YES NO
direct the activities of the company, otherwise than by reason of being a director or other office holder of the company. O O
PLEASE NOTE THAT IT ISHIGHLY UNLIKELY THAT YOU ARE A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
4. To re-appoint Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer (a member of Ernst and Young Global), as the independent registered public
accounting firm of the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019 and until immediately following the next annual O O O

general meeting




To change the address on your account, please check the box at right and indicate your new address in the address space above. O
Please note that changes to the registered name(s) on the account may not be submitted via this method.

Signature of Sharehol der Date

Signature of Shareholder Date

NOTE: Please sign exactly asyour name or names appear on this Proxy. When shares are held jointly, each holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or
guardian, please give full title as such. If the signer isa corporation, please sign full corporate name by duly authorized officer, giving full title as such. If signer isapartnership, please signin
partnership name by authorized person.
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